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2010-11 2011-12* 2012-13* 2013-14* 2014-15*
Equity Share Capital 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Reserves & Surplus 8,282 11,551 14,330 17,634 19,694
Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) 348 524 646 657 779
Secured Loans 6,182 6,153 6,008 7,697 7,824

Total External Liability 8,867 11,643 10,355 12,937 12,548
Total Assets 24,679 30,871 32,339 39,925 41,845
Sales 57,225 73,582 78,622 89,192 97,278

YoY Growth 75.04% 28.58% 6.85% 13.44% 9.07%
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation
& Tax (PBDIT) 4,483 6,610 5,999 6,785 7,276
Interest 397 779 687 601 863
Depreciation 808 1,003 1,138 1,245 1,483

Profit before Tax 3,278 4,828 4,174 4,939 4,929
Profit after Tax 2,487 4,432 3,949 4,766 3,803

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 24.83 8.86 7.90 9.53 7.61
Dividend 75% 100% 100% 125% 125%

2014-15* 2014-15*

* Indicated EPS is of Face Value of Rs.2/- each. Every 1 (One) Equity Share of Rs.10/- (Ten only) each

FINANCIAL STATISTICS

subdivided into 5 (Five only) Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each w.e.f. 31 December, 2011.st
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To
The Members
Munjal Auto Industries Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present Company’s 30th Annual Report
and audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31,
2015 is summarized below:-

(Rs. in Lacs)
Year ended March 31, 2014-2015 2013-2014
Sales & Other Income 97277.31 89192.42
Profit before Finance Cost & Depreciation 7275.87 6785.00
Depreciation 1483.54 1244.86
Finance Cost 863.23 601.48
Profit before Taxation 4929.10 4938.66
Provision for Taxation (Deferred &Current) 1125.96 172.88
Profit after Taxation 3803.14 4765.78
Profit available for Appropriations 3803.14 4765.78
Appropriations
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 1250.00 1250.00
Tax on Dividend 254.47 212.44
Transfer to General Reserve - 476.58
Profit remaining after Appropriation 2298.67 2826.76
DIVIDEND

Your Directors have pleasure to recommend a dividend of 125% i.e.
Rs.2.50/- on equity share of face value of Rs. 2/- each for the fiscal
year ended 31st March, 2015. The dividend, if approved by the
Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, would absorb
Rs.1504.47 lacs including dividend distribution tax (Rs. 1,462.43 lacs
previous year) out of the distributable profits available.

APPROPRIATIONS

After setting aside amount of Rs.1504.47 lacs towards dividend
including dividend distribution tax and after transferring an amount of
Rs. Nil (Rs. 476.58 lacs previous year) to General Reserve, the
balance amount of Rs.2059.87 lacs (Rs. 2,826.76 lacs previous
year) is being retained in the Profit and Loss Account.

PERFORMANCE

The Company has achieved sales turnover of Rs. 961.42 Crore
registering a modest growth of 9.08% per cent. Profit before tax is
Rs.49.29 Crore and profit after tax at Rs. 38.03 Crore during the year

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
as against Rs. 49.39 Crore and Rs. 47.66 Crore respectively in the
previous year. Considering the overall sluggish conditions in Indian
Economy and in auto sector, the operating numbers can be deemed
as satisfactory.

CAPACITY UTILIZATION & PLANT OPERATIONS

All four units of the Company at Waghodia in Gujarat, Bawal as well
as Dharuhera both in Haryana and Haridwar in Uttarakhand are
running well and continue to operate at a satisfactory level of efficiency.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity capital as on March 31, 2015 stands at Rs. 10
Crore consisting of 5 Crore Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each. During the
year under review, the Company has not issued any bonus shares,
additional equity shares, any right shares with differential voting rights
nor granted any stock options or issued any sweat equity shares.

APPOINTMENT/ CESSATION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of section 152 of Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable
provisions therein, one-third of the retiring Directors (other than
independent directors who are non retiring) shall retire by rotation,
and if eligible, may offer themselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting of the Shareholders. Accordingly, Mr. Sudhir Kumar
Munjal retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for reelection.

Your Board recommends re-appointment of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal,
retiring at the forthcoming AGM of Company in terms Section 152 of
Companies Act, 2013, who in opinion of the Board fulfills the conditions
for reappointment specified in the Act and rules made thereunder.

Shri Satyanand ji Munjal, chairman of the Company has resigned,
due to advanced age, from the directorship of the Company w.e.f.
February 02, 2015. The Board of Directors, while wishing him a
healthy, long life, takes on record the invaluable guidance provided
by Shri Satyanand ji Munjal since inception of the Company. His
guiding principles have laid the path of good governance in steering
affairs of the Company all these years and his foundational values
taking care of interests of all stakeholders in the company will
continue to be a good legacy. Shri Sudhir Kumar Munjal has been
appointed as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company w.e.f.
March 28, 2015.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause
49 of the ListingAgreement, the performance of the Board and individual
Directors was evaluated by the Board seeking relevant inputs from
all the Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration committee (NRC)
reviewed the performance of the individual Director.A separate meeting
of Independent Directors was also held to review the performance of
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Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole and
performance of the Chair-person of the Company.

QUALITY

Your Company is focusing on quality, right from new product
development stage such as design of processes, manufacturing of
tools, fixtures & dies so as to ensure quality output on a sustainable
basis. This attribute of your Company has enabled it remain a
consistent quality producer over the years.

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTS

Your Company continued to focus on operational improvement.
Continuing focus on managing optimal levels of inventory, sound
business performance, operating efficiencies in various segments of
business and cost saving drive across the organization have helped
it generate decent cash flow from operations, notwithstanding
headwinds blowing in automobile sector and sluggish macro-economic
environ throughout the year.

Your Company was able to raise the short-term/long term funds
needed for its working capital related requirements & term loans for
new capital expenditure at reasonable rates. Your Company continues
to enjoy excellent credit ratings for both long and short tenure borrowings
and maintains impeccable debt-servicing track record, which helps
it retain excellent rapport with all of its bankers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of
corporate governance and adhere to the corporate governance
requirements set out by SEBI. The report on Corporate Governance
as stipulated under the Listing Agreement forms an integral part of this
Report. The requisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company
confirming compliance with the conditions of corporate governance
is attached to the report on Corporate Governance.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR Committee) has formulated
and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the
Company, which has been approved by the Board.

The amount required to be spent on CSR activities during the year
under report in accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the
Act is Rs. 92.94 lacs and the Company has spent Rs. 37.99 lacs
during the current financial year. The shortfall in the spend during the
year under report is intended to be utilized in phased manner in
future, upon identification of suitable projects/programmes within the
Company’s CSR Policy.

The requisite details on CSR activities pursuant to Section 135 of the
Act and as per Annexure attached to the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are annexed as Annexure
A to this Report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, SECURITIES OR
INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any guarantees or securities covered
under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’).

However, the aggregate of loans and advances granted as also
investments are within the limits of Section 186 of the Act.

DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 149(6) OF THE ACT

The Company has received declaration from all independent directors
of the Company to the effect that they meet criteria of independence
as stipulated u/s 149(6) of the Act and Clause 49 of the listing
agreement.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors
would like to state that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year under
review;

c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis; and

e) The directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the company and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively;

f) The directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such system
were adequate and operating effectively;
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SECTION 188 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no related party transactions entered into during the
financial year under section 188 of Companies Act, 2013.

HOLDING COMPANY

Thakur Devi Investments Private Limited is a holding company of the
Company holding 74.81% Equity Share Capital of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

During the year, The Board has accepted all recommendations of
Audit Committee and accordingly no disclosure is required to be
made in respect of no acceptance of the recommendation of the Audit
Committee by the Board.

RATINGS FOR BORROWING

ICRA, the rating agency has reaffirmed AA- with stable outlook for
the long term ratings for bank facilities and A1+ the short term rating
for short term bank facilities and commercial paper of your Company.

AUDITORS

The auditors, M/s. VAKIL, JAIN & HINDOCHA, Chartered
Accountants, retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. They
have furnished their consent and requisite certificate pursuant to the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of their proposed reappointment.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 is annexed herewith
as Annexure B.

EXPLANATION/ COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATION/
RESERVATION/ ADVERSE REMARK/ DISCLAIMER BY THE
AUDITORS, IF ANY

Since there was no qualification/ reservation/ adverse remark/
disclaimer either by the Auditors or Secretarial Auditors in their
respective report, no explanation/ comment is offered.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is
applicable to the Members of the Board and all employees in the
course of day to day business operations of the company.

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct
which is expected to be followed by the Directors and the designated
employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters
relating to integrity in the work place in business practices and in
dealing with stakeholders. All the Board Members and the Senior
Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code.
All Management have been given appropriate training in this regard.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy to deal
with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. In staying true to
our values of Strength, Performance and Passion and in line with our
vision of being one of the most respected companies in India, the
Company is committed to the high standards of Corporate Governance
and stakeholder responsibility.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of
Insider Trading pursuant to new SEBI (Prohibition & Insider Trading)
Regulation 2015 in place of SEBI (Prohibition & Insider Trading)
Regulation 1992 with a view to regulate trading in securities by the
Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code
requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and
prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors
and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the
period when the ‘Trading Window’ is closed. The Board is responsible
for implementation of the Code. All Directors and the designated
employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.

BOARD MEETINGS

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year.
Details of the composition of the Board and its committees and of the
meeting held, attendance of the directors of such meeting and other
relevant details are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has appointed M/s Devesh
Vimal & Co., Company Secretaries in practice to undertake the
SecretarialAudit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report for the
financial year ended March 31, 2015 is annexed herewith marked
as Annexure C to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has adopted a Risk Management policy in accordance
with the provision of Companies Act 2013 and Clause 49 of Listing
Agreement. It established various level of accountability and overview
within the company, while vesting identified manager with responsibility
for each significant risk.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS IMPACTING
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS/ COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

No significant/ material orders have been passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status of the
Company or company’s operations in future.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule 5 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company.
Remuneration of KMP and Sitting fees paid to Independent Directors
are provided in Annexure B i.e. Extract of Annual Return Form No.
MGT-9. There was no employee of the Company except Executive
Directors employed through out the year who was in receipt of the
remuneration exceeding Rs. 60 Lacs per annuam.

MANAGEMEMNT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under
review as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with
the Stock Exchanges in India is enclosed as per Annexure D and
forms part of this report.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial relations have remained cordial throughout the year in the
Company at all of its units.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH, SAFETY AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company is committed in maintaining the highest standards of
environment compliances and therefore adopted a systematic
approach towards environment management by embedding a vision
of being an ’Injury Free’ and ‘Zero Environment Incident’ organisation.
Over the past many years, your Company has been progressing
well in terms of reducing injury frequency rates and has improved
the safety records.

Your Company is environment-conscious and committed to making
a positive contribution to the communities where it operates. The
Company has been proactively pursuing measures and reaching out
to the communities surrounding the areas of its operations by extending
support and lending a helping hand to some very credible social
institutions that are committed to address social causes.

Your Company has been certified for Occupation, Health and Safety
(OHSAS)18001:2007 from Bureau Veritas during FY 2012-13, which
is valid for three years. Your Company is committed for safety and
occupational health & compliance with applicable safety and
occupational health legislation, regulations and other requirements. All
incidents/ accidents are investigated and analysed to prevent
reoccurrence and improve upon safety record.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/ TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AS WELL AS FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has not imported any foreign technology and hence,
the company does not have any information to offer in respect of
Technology absorption. However, information in respect of Conservation
of energy & foreign exchange earnings and outgo is enclosed in
Annexure E.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and
appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.
The requisite details as required under Section 134(3)(e), Section
178(3) & (4) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement are annexed
as Annexure F to this report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY, IF ANY, DURING
THE PERIOD FROM 31ST MARCH, 2015 TO THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

There has no material change/ commitment affecting the financial
position of the Company during the period from the end of the financial
year on 31st March, 2015 to the date of the Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Company would like to thank all of its Stakeholders, including
inter alia Suppliers, Vendors, Investors and Bankers and appreciation
to all its customers for their consistent, abiding support throughout the
year.

Your Company also records its appreciation of the contributions
made by employees at all levels. Their commitment, cooperation and
support are indeed the backbone of all endeavors of the Company.

The Company would like to acknowledge Government of India,
Customs and Excise Departments, Income Tax Department, Industrial
& Labour Departments, Government of Gujarat, Government of
Haryana, Government of Uttarakhand and other government agencies
for the support; the Company has been receiving over the years and
is looking forward to their continued support/guidance in times to
come.

For and on behalf of the Board
Munjal Auto Industries Limited

Date : 29th May, 2015 Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Place : Waghodia Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00084080
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ANNEXURE -A
Annual Report on CSR Initiatives

1. Abrief outline of theCompany’s CSRpolicy, includingoverview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the
web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes:
The Company has framed a CSR policy in compliance with the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 andthe same is available on the web
link www.munjalauto.comThe CSR policy, inter alia, covers the concept (CSR philosophy, snapshot ofactivities undertaken by thegroup and
applicability, scope (area/localities to be covered andactivities), resources, identification and approval process (resources/fund allocation,
identification process and approvalprocess) modalities of execution and implementationand monitoring.

2. CSR Committee comprises of :
Mr. Vikram Shah, Chairman Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla, Member Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal, Member
Mrs. Anju Munjal, Member Mr. Anuj Munjal, Member

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years: Rs. 46.47 Crore
4. PrescribedCSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs. 92.94 Lacs
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a) Total amount to bespent for the financial year: Rs. 92.94 Lacs
b) Amount spent : Rs. 37.99 Lacs
c) Amount unspent : Rs. 54.95 Lacs
d) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S. CSR Project or Sector in Projects or programs Amount Amount spend Cumulative Amount Spent:
No. Activity identified which the (1) Local area or outlay on the projects expenditure Direct or through

project is other (budget) or programs upto the implementing
covered (2) Specify the state project sub-heads reporting agency*

and district where or (1) Direct Expenditure Per iod
projects or programs programs on projects or (Rs.)
was undertaken wise programmes

(Rs.) (2) Overheads Rs.
1 Prime Minister Relief Fund Flood in Jammu & 11,00,000 11,00,000 11,00,000 Agency : Prime Minister

National Relief Fund Kashmir National Relief Fund,
New Delhi

2 Old age home to look Health Care New Delhi 9,24,239 9,24,239 9,24,239 Agency : The Earth
after homeless - Saviours Foundation,
abandoned senior New Delhi
citizens.

3 Special Education, Education Vadodara, Gujarat 6,00,000 6,00,000 6,00,000 Agency : Disha
medical intervention and Charitable Trust,
including preventive Health care Vadodara, Gujarat
health care in
Disability/Social Sector

4 Promoting education Education and Vadodara, Gujarat 3,50,000 3,50,000 3,50,000 Agency : Akshar Trust
for impaired/disabled employment Vadodara, Gujarat

5 Health improvement Health Care – Ludhiana ,Punjab 2,50,000 2,50,000 2,50,000 Agency : Arpita
Children Cancer Society for
victims from Children
Cancer Ludhiana, Punjab

6 Promoting education Education Kutch Gandhidham, 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 Agency : Arya Samaj,
to Orphans Gujarat Kutch,

Gandhidham, Gujarat
7 Health improvement Health Care Sabar Kaantha, 2,50,000 2,50,000 2,50,000 Agency : Vaanprastha

Gujarat Saadhak Aashram,
Sabar Kaantha, Gujarat

8 Community Community Morbi,Gujarat 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 Agency : Shri
development development Maharishi Dayanand

Saraswati Smark
Trust: Morbi, Gujarat

9 Promoting Culture Promotion of Vadodara, Gujarat 1,25,000 1,25,000 1,25,000 Agency : Komal Nishad
culture Charitable Trust,

Vadodara, Gujarat
Total 37,99,239 37,99,239 37,99,239
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6. In case the companyhas failed to spend the twopercent of the averagenet profit of the last threefinancial yearsor anypart thereof, the company

shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board’s report:
As mentioned in the Directors Report, theshortfall in the spend Rs. 54.95 during the year is intended to be utilized in a phased manner in
coming yearsupon identification of suitable projects in accordance with the Company’sCSR Policy.

7. Responsibility Statement
CSRCommitteeconfirms that implementation and monitoringof CSRPolicy, is in compliance with CSRobjectives and policy of the company.

Place : Waghodia Vikram Shah Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Date : 29th May, 2015 Chairman-CSR Committee Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00007914 DIN : 00084080
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ANNEXURE B TO DIRECTORS REPORT
FORM NO. MGT.9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i) CIN : L34100GJ1985PLC007958
ii) Registration Date : 12-07-1985
iii) Name of the Company : Munjal Auto Industries Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited by shares
v) Address of the Registered office and : 187, GIDC Industrial Estate, Waghodia, Vadodara - 391760

contact details Tel. No. (02668)262421-22, Fax No. (02668)262427
vi) Whether listed company Yes / No : Yes
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar : MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited,

and Transfer Agent, if any 10, Aram Apartment, 12, Sampatrao Colony, B/h Laxmi Hall,
Alkapuri, Vadodara– 390 007 (Gujarat)
Tel.: +91 265 2339397, Fax: +91 265 2341639
E-mail: mcsltdbaroda@yahoo.com; mcsvadodara@rediffmail.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-
Sl. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the % of total turn over
No. Product / service of the Company
1 Manufacture of parts and accessories of three wheelers 30913 92%

and motorcycles including side cars
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Applicable
No SUBSIDIARY/ shares held Section

ASSOCIATE
1 Thakurdevi Investments Private Limited, U65921PB1979PTC004044 Holding Company 74.81% 2(87)(ii)

Hero Nagar, Ludhiana - 141003
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the %
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year Change

(As on 31-March-2014) (As on 31-March-2015) during
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of the

Total Total year
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF - - - - - - - - -
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. 3,74,03,225 - 3,74,03,225 74.81 3,74,03,225 - 3,74,03,225 74.81 0.00
e) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
f) Any Other.. - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (1):- 3,74,03,225 - 3,74,03,225 74.81 3,74,03,225 - 3,74,03,225 74.81 0.00
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Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the %
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year Change

(As on 31-March-2014) (As on 31-March-2015) during
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of the

Total Total year
Shares Shares

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
e) Any Other.... - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total 3,74,03,225 - 3,74,03,225 74.81 3,74,03,225 - 3,74,03,225 74.81 -
shareholding
of Promoter
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 10,000 500 10,500 0.02 10,715 500 11,215 0.02 -
b) Banks/FI 750 24,955 25,705 0.05 6,380 24,955 31,335 0.06 0.01
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g) FIIs 84,900 - 84,900 0.17 1,09,900 - 1,09,900 0.22 0.05
h) Foreign Venture - - - - - - - - -

Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):- 95,650 25,455 1,21,105 0.24 1,26,995 25,455 1,52,450 0.30 0.06
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 15,82,054 29,500 16,11,554 3.22 14,93,185 29,500 15,22,685 3.05 -0.17
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 73,35,730 13,80,240 87,15,970 17.43 74,30,794 13,32,790 87,63,584 17.53 0.10

holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders 13,41,723 - 13,41,723 2.68 13,10,788 - 13,10,788 2.62 -0.06
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Non Resident Indians 1,95,903 32,750 2,28,653 0.46 2,01,921 32,500 2,34,421 0.47 0.01
Others (HUF) 5,77,770 - 5,77,770 1.16 6,12,847 - 6,12,847 1.23 0.07
Sub-Total (B)(2):- 1,10,33,180 14,42,490 1,24,75,670 24.95 1,10,49,535 13,94,790 1,24,44,325 24.89 -0.06
Total Public 1,11,28,830 14,67,945 1,25,96,775 25.19 1,11,76,530 14,20,245 1,25,96,775 25.19 -
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. SHARES HELD BY - - - - - - - - -
CUSTODIAN FOR
GDRS & ADRS
Grand Total (A+B+C) 4,85,32,055 14,67,945 5,00,00,000 100 4,85,79,755 14,20,245 5,00,00,000 100 -
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
S. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the Share holding at the
No. beginning of the year end of the year

(As on 01.04.2014) (As on 31.03.2015)
No. of % of % of Shares No. of % of % of Shares % change
Shares total Pledged/ Shares total Pledged/ in share

Shares encumbered Shares encumbered holding
of the to total of the to total during

company shares company shares the year
1 Thakurdevi Investments 3,74,03,225 74.81% NIL 3,74,03,225 74.81% NIL NIL

Private Limited
Total 3,74,03,225 74.81% NIL 3,74,03,225 74.81% NIL NIL

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) – No Change
S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of shares of

the company the company
1 At the beginning of the year 3,74,03,225 74.81% 3,74,03,225 74.81%
2 Date wise Increase/ Decrease in NIL Nil NIL Nil

Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/ sweat equity etc):

3 At the End of the year 3,74,03,225 74.81% 3,74,03,225 74.81%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)
S.No. Name of Share Holder As on 01.04.2014 % As on 31.03.2015 %
1 Rajan Vasudev Dapki 2,09,612 0.42 1,15,000 0.23
2 Jayakumar C 2,00,560 0.40 2,00,560 0.40
3 Kotak Mahindra 1,42,110 0.28 1,38,382 0.28

Investments Ltd.
4 Purvi Saurabh Parikh 1,25,000 0.25 - -
5 Anita Rawat 1,20,000 0.24 1,20,000 0.24
6 Kanubhai Ratilal Sheth 1,17,500 0.24 1,17,500 0.24
7 V Jayam 1,07,244 0.21 1,00,244 0.20
8 Laurel Securities Pvt. Ltd. 1,03,530 0.21 1,03,530 0.21
9 Sheth Commercial Pvt. Ltd. 1,02,850 0.21 1,02,850 0.21
10 Shresth Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. 1,00,000 0.20 - -
11 Swiss Finance Corporation - - 1,09,900 0.22

(Mauritius) Ltd.
12 Kiran S Coelho - - 1,00,000 0.20
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

S. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of shares of

the company the company
At the beginning of the year

1 Smt. Anju Munjal, WTD 311 0.0006 311 0.0006
2 Shri Naresh Kumar Chawla, Director 250 0.0005 250 0.0005

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
holding during the yearspecifying the reasons
for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year

1 Smt. Anju Munjal 311 0.0006
2 Shri Naresh Kumar Chawla 250 0.0005

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year (01.04.2014)
i) Principal Amount 82,06,96,551 - - 82,06,96,551
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 57,81,978 - - 57,81,978

Total (i+ii+iii) 82,64,78,529 - - 82,64,78,529
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
• Addition 18,00,00,000 - - 18,00,00,000
• Reduction 19,93,06,836 - - 19,93,06,836
Net Change -1,93,06,836 - - -1,93,06,836
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year (31.03.2015)
i) Principal Amount 80,13,89,715 - - 80,13,89,715
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 78,57,344 - - 78,57,344

Total (i+ii+iii) 80,92,47,059 - - 80,92,47,059
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

(Rs. In Lacs)
S. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
No. Shri Sudhir Smt. Anju Shri Anuj Total

Kumar Munjal Munjal Munjal Amount
- CMD -WTD - WTD

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 192.00 117.60 130.23 439.83

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 2.93 34.12 .32 37.37

Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - - -

section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
2. Stock Option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4. Commission

- as % of profit
- others, specify... - - - -

5. Others, please specify
a) Company’s contribution to the provident Fund 11.52 10.08 8.65 30.24
b) Company’s contribution to Superannuation scheme 9.60 8.40 7.20 25.20
c) Gratuity 4.61 4.04 3.46 12.11

Total (A) 220.66 174.23 149.86 544.75
Ceiling as per the Act 544.75

B. Remuneration to other directors (Rs. In Lacs)
S. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
No.

Independent Directors Shri Shri Shri Shri Shri Shri Jal Total
Vikram Naresh Mahendra Ramkisan Sudesh Ratanshaw Amount
Shah Kumar Sanghvi Devidayal Kumar Patel

Chawla Duggal
• Fee for attending Board/ 2.46 1.70 1.40 2.00 .80 1.20 9.56

Board committee meetings
• Commission - - - - - - -
• Others, please specify - - - - - - -

Total (1) 2.46 1.70 1.40 2.00 .80 1.20 9.56
4. Other Non-Executive Directors

• Fee for attending board - - - - - - -
committee meetings

• Commission - - - - - - -
• Others, please specify - - - - - - -

Total (2) - - - - - - -
Total (B) = (1 + 2) 2.46 1.70 1.40 2.00 .80 1.20 9.56
Total Managerial Remuneration 2.46 1.70 1.40 2.00 .80 1.20 9.56
Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

(Rs. In Lacs)
S. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. CEO Company Secretary CFO Total
1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - 11.12 27.22 38.34
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - 0.47 0.42 0.89
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - - -

Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4. Commission

- as % of profit - - - -
- others, specify... - - - -

5. Others, please specify
a) Company’s contribution to the provident Fund - 0.71 1.54 2.25
b) Company’s contribution to Superannuation Fund - 0.59 1.29 1.88
c) Gratuity - 0.28 0.62 0.80
d) Others - 0.61 1.78 2.39

Total - 13.78 32.87 46.55
VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
of the Description Penalty/ [RD/NCLT/ if any

Companies Punishment/ COURT] (give Details)
Act Compounding

fees imposed
A. COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - None - -
Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - None - -
Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - None - -

Compounding - - - - -
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Date : 29th May, 2015 Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Place : Waghodia Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00084080
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Details as per Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014

S.N. Particulars
i. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median Whole time Directors

remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year CMD WTD WTD
107 85 73
X X X

ii. The % increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Whole time Directors KMPs
Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manger, if CMD WTD WTD CFO * CS
any of the Financial Year -7.85% 1.30% 8.36% 27.17% 15.44%

iii. The % increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 10.37%
financial year

iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company. 1147
v. The explanation on the relationship between average increase in Annual Increase in remuneration is based on the

remuneration and Company performance. remuneration policy for different grades, industry pattern,
vi. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel qualifications and experience, responsibilities shouldered

against the performance of the Company. and individual performance of the Key Managerial
personnel & other employees and also performance of
the Company

vii. Variations in the market capitalization of the company, price earnings 2014-15 2013-14
ratio as at the closing date of the current financial year and previous Market Capitalization Rs.358.50 Cr. Rs.257.75 Cr.
financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the market PE Ratio 9.42 5.41
quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at Last Public Offer Maket NA NA
which the Company came out with the last public offer . Quotation

viii. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial % Increase in 2014-15 Justification/
year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the Remarks
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if Salaries of Employees 11.01%
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the Managerial -0.91%
managerial remuneration. Remuneration

ix. Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Particulars % of Net Sales
Personnel against the performance of the Company. for F.Y 2014-15

CMD 0.25%
WTD 0.20%
WTD 0.17%
CFO 0.04%
CS 0.01%

x. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration Key parameters of Whole time Directors’ variable
availed by the directors. remuneration includes components like incentive on

growth of top-line and growth in profitability.
xi. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of NOT APPLICABLE

the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in
excess of the highest paid director during the year and

xii. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy Remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the
of the Company. Company.

* includes increase for relocation to meet increased cost of leaving.
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MUNJAL AUTO
ANNEXURE C

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules,
2014]
To,
The Members,
Munjal Auto Industries Ltd,
187, GIDC Industrial Estate
Waghodia
Dist: Baroda-391760
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and theadherence to good corporate practices
by Munjal Auto Industries Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Munjal Auto Industries Limited’sbooks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents andauthorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31st March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent ofForeign Direct Investment,

Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)

Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding

the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(vi) Further, we confirm that as per representation of management letter there are no laws specifically applicable to the Company considering
its product, process or location.We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India

Ltd.
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During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above subject to the following observations:
(a) Since the Company has not issued any securities during the period under review:

- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009
- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme),

guidelines, 1999
- The Securities and Exchange board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
were not applicable during the period under review.

(b) In view of neither delisting of Equity Shares nor buy back of any security of the Company,

- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and
- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities ) Regulations, 1998 were not applicable during the period

under review,
(c) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India were not mandatorily applicable during the period under

review.
We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed noteson agenda were sent at least seven days
in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications onthe agenda items before the meeting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period the Company has
(i) Obtained approval of members at their Annual General Meeting held on 8th August,2014 by way of Special Resolution pursuant to Section

180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 authorizing the Board of Directors of the Company to borrow upto Rs. 200 Crores
(ii) Obtained approval of members through postal ballot on 3rd January, 2015 by way of Special Resolution pursuant to Section 180(1)(a)

of the Companies Act, 2013 authorizing the Board of Directors of the Company to secure borrowings by /lease or otherwise disposing
of the undertaking(s) of the Company (other than sale)

For Devesh Vimal & Co.
Practising Company Secretaries

Date : 28th May, 2015 CS Devesh A. Pathak
Place : Vadodara Partner

FCS: 4559
CP No. 2306
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Indian Economy and Business Outlook

Riding on the crestof optimism triggered bydecisive mandate-providing
general elections in India in May 2014, the year in retrospect can be
regarded as amixed bag of optimism and continuing challenges from
the business outlook perspective. Indian Economy did achieve a
respectable GDPgrowthof 6.9 percent inYear 14-15, one of thehighest
among major economies of theworld; appears to be coming out of the
sub-five percent growth it was in grip of in last three years.

The new government is intent on working out a roadmap for boosting
many sectorsof the Economy toregain the traction ofhigh growth of 9-
10 percent in GDP; a sine qua non requirement for a sustainable
improvement in the qualityof living conditions of millions of people in
India. Several recent initiatives of theGovernment, notablyof removing
bottlenecks in infrastructure, setting of smart cities and e-governance
and MAKE IN INDIA clarion call toabsorb large chunk of youths and
adults in gainful economic activities are emanating the right signals.
These initiatives, if converted into diligently implemented deliverables,
will givea fillip to the investment activities thatare sagged for the last 3-4
years. Downward pressure on crude oil and other major commodity
prices in international market thathasbeen experienced in lastone year
will workto theadvantage ofan energy-intensive and import-dependent
economy like that of India is.

There aresome areasof concernsand challenges as well – particularly
manyoverleveraged andcash starved business entities are increasing
the Non-performingAssets and risk-profile of banks in India.The equity
market in primary sector to garner fresh resources it badly needs to
deleverage their balancesheets and fund future growth needs.

Automotive Sector

It continued to remain sluggish for the fourth consecutive year with
flat or slightly negative growth in most of the sectors across the
automobile industry. Two wheeler segment with which your company’s
business is inextricably aligned too has performed sub-optimally and
in particular the motor cycle market has remained lackadaisical in
last three years. Following table is a pointer to this sub-optimal growth
in the motorcycle market in last three years.

Segment Two Wheeler Trends of YOY Growth
Domestic Sales

FY 13 FY14 FY15 FY14 FY15

Scooter 29,23,424 36,02,743 45,05,529 23.2% 25.1%

Motor- 1,00,85,000 1,04,81,115 1,07,43,549 3.9% 2.5%
cycles

Mopeds 7,88,761 7,22,920 7,55,503 -8.3% 4.5%

1,37,97,185 1,48,06,778 1,60,04,581 7.3% 8.1%

Unless there is a vigorous rebound in auto sector and within it in
particular two-wheeler segment, the cascading effect on operations of
your company will be felt in the coming year.

Your company’s performance in 2014-15 has to be viewed amid this
challenging macro environment that prevailed throughout the year.

Automotive Sector

Indian auto industry has been recording tremendous growth over the
years and has emerged as a major contributor to India’s gross
domestic product (GDP). The industry currently accounts for almost
7 per cent of our GDP and employs about 19 million people both
directly and indirectly.

Automotive industry occupies a significant place in the Indian economy.
India is emerging as a global hub for auto component sourcing and
is set to break into the league of the top five vehicle producing nations
worldwide. Country is also emerging as a sourcing hub for engine
components. Indian auto component sector covers a wide range of
industries, including engine parts, drive transmission and steering
parts, body and chassis, suspension and braking parts, equipment
and electrical parts, besides others.

Indian auto component industry is estimated to have a US$ 66 billion
turnover by 2015–16 and is expected to grow at a 14 per cent
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) during 2014–2021, according
to Automotive Component Manufacturers’Association of India (ACMA)
– the nodal agency for the Indian auto component industry. In addition,
industry exports are estimated to reach US$ 12 billion by 2015–16.

Risks and Concerns – Automotive Sector

Any company’s business is inherently exposed to many internal and
external risks. Your Company has put in place robust systems and
processes, along with appropriate internal review mechanisms to
actively monitor, manage and mitigate these risks on an ongoing
basis. Some of the risks are listed below:

- Raw Materials, Conversion Costs & Pressure on Margins

In recent years, the sluggish auto sector demand has
accentuated thepressure from principal customer to reduce
prices of the components made by the company. Relatively
high inflationary pressure coupledwith high content of Raw
materials & components in the final cost of company’s products
will exuberate the pressure on margins. Control over other
conversion costs also, despite stringent cost controls is not
assuaging enough the pressure and in the coming year, it will
be telling upon the margins of the products with very constrained
pricing power at its command.

ANNEXURE - D
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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It will be difficult for the company to maintain the profitability it has
achieved in recent past, so it seems in the present challenging
business environ in auto sector. Erratic and deficient monsoon
thus far in manyparts of the country could have an adverse
impact on rural income dependent demand; two wheeler
vehicles’ major portion of demand is derived from and falls in
that category of rural/semi urban populace disposable income
level.

- Environment Regulations

Stringent regulatory norms are being introduced to safeguard
the environment, especially in the area of emissions.

Future Outlook

Your Company’s DNA attributes – thrift in operational costs, accent
on quality manufacturing and forward-looking policies – will help it stay
in good stead. Notwithstanding the same, coming year is slated to be
quite challenging on all fronts, specially the operating margins retention
of immediate past few years.

- Research and Development

As times are becoming more competitive, it is imperative that
we move away from being a commodity supplier towards
becoming a system supplier. Company has outsourced the
R&D capability by entering into a tie up with reputed European
technology firm. The technical inputs of latest trends in designing
auto components will be available for the company to avail and
absorb and be better equipped in enhancing/improving
manufacturing with this tie up.

- Increased Product Range

Company is also constantly working on broadening its product
portfolio. From manufacturing exclusively Rims and Mufflers
until few years back, your company today manufactures, other
than mufflers, fuel tanks for cars, and chassis components like
B & C Pillars and impact beams. The new outsourced
technological capabilities will help make foray into greater range
and more sophisticated applications in sheet metal components,
which is yourcompany’s core and focused business arena.

- Continuous Improvement and Automation

As the business environment gets more competitive, it is
imperative that we constantly look for better ways of doing work.
In the pastyear, your company has gone in for various
automations like robotic welding, robotic painting, tool
manufacturing and upto 1000 ton presses. Tool Room set up
at Bawal in Haryana at an investment of INR 30 crore will further
pave the way for improvement and quality ingredients for various
components that Company manufactures.

- Forward Looking Statements

Statements forming part of the Management Discussion and
Analysis covered in this report may be forward-looking within
the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual
results may differ materially from those expressed in the
statement. Important factors that could influence the Company’s
operations include demand and supply conditions, changes in
government regulations, exchange rates,tax laws, monsoon,
natural hazards, economic developments within the country and
other factors.
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Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required under the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A. Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The Management is perusing energy conservation with
considerable focus and commitment. Effective use of energy,
particularly in the hard core manufacturing processes of the
company. Optimal utilization of various energy resources like
power, fuel and oil is ensured by ongoing measures/steps that
improve power factor and other consumption.

ANNEXURE E TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Company has processes to measure, monitor and improve
environmental performance through various initiatives focusing
on energy, water and waste. Water efficiency and conservation
initiatives, rainwater harvesting systems, domestic sewage
treatment and recycling facilities are a part of design in all its
units towards becoming zero water discharge.

2. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo
(Rs. in Lacs)

2014-15 2013-14

(a) Total Foreign Exchange Earnings 1337.59 833.10
(b) Total Foreign Exchange Outgo 545.19 622.61
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ANNEXURE - F
POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION POLICY
In accordance with the provisions of section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommended
the following remuneration policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, which was
approved and adopted by the Board.
I. PREAMBLE

This Remuneration Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Ac, 2013, read with the applicable rules thereto
and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges, as amendedfrom time to time. This policy
has formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and has been approved by the Boardof Directors based on
the recommendations of the NRC.

II. OBJECTIVE
The objective of the policy is to ensure that:
(i) The level of composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required

to run the company successfully.
(ii) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and
(iii) Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance betweenfixed and incentive pay

reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company andits goals.
III. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The procedure and limits for payment of remuneration under this policy shall be in accordance with provisions of (a) the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under (b) Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges (c) Articlesof Association of the Company
and (d) any other applicable law or regulations. In the absence of any of the above provisions, theprocedure and limits shall be governed
by the prevailing HR policy of the Company.

IV. REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Sitting fees within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under for attending meeting of the Board
and Committees thereof.

V. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Remuneration to key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

VI. REMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES
Components
Basic Salary, Allowances, Retiral Benefits, such other perquisites and/or incentives and/or bonus and/or Variable Incentive Pay based
on factors as above, as may be decided by the Management from time to time as per HR policy.

CRITERIA FOR IDENTIFICATION OF PERSONS FOR APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTORS AND IN SENIOR MANAGEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 (3) of the Act read with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is required to formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director. The criteria
adopted by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the aforesaid purposes are as under:
Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
I. QUALFICATIONS

(a) He/She should possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in or more fields of finance law,management, sales, marketing
administration, research, corporate governance, technical operations or other disciplines related to the company’s business.

(b) Such qualifications as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed there under and the Listing
Agreement with Stock Exchanges.
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II. POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES

(a) He/She should be person of integrity, with high ethical standard.
(b) He/She should be able to commit to his/her responsibilities and devote sufficient time and attention to his/her professional obligation

as a director.
(c) He/She should be having courtesy, humility and positive thinking.
(d) He/She should be knowledgeable and diligent in updating his/her knowledge.
(e) He/She should have skills, experience and expertise by which the Company can benefit.
(f) In respective of Executive/Whole time Director/ Managing Director, in addition to 1(a) & (b) and II (a) to (e) above, he/she should

have strong quality of leadership and team mentoring, recognition, management skills, vision, ability to steer the organization even
in adverse conditions, innovative thinking, result oriented and ability to enhance reputation of theorganization.

III. INDEPENDENCE
In respect of an Independent director, in addition to 1(a) & (b) and II (a) to (e) above, he/she should fulfill the criteria for being appointed
as an Independent Director prescribed under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV to the said Act and the
provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement as amended from time to time.

For and on behalf of the Board
Place : Waghodia Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Date : 29th May, 2015 Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00084080
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To
THE MEMBERS OF
MUNJAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Munjal
Auto Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31st March, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015

(‘the order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from
the Directors as on 31st March, 2015 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements – Refer Note B and H to the financial
statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For VAKIL JAIN & HINDOCHA
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.112894W
SURENDRA MODIANI

Place : Vadodara PARTNER
Date : 29-05-2015 Membership No.047966

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of the Auditor’s
Report to the members of Munjal Auto Industries Limited for
the year ended 31st March, 2015

i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets;

(b) These fixed assets have been physically verified by the
Management at reasonable intervals. We are informed
that no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification;

ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year
by the Management. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the Management are

reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
Company and nature of its business.

(c) The company is maintaining proper records of inventory.
No Material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification thereof.

iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firm or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the CompaniesAct and
therefore, the matters referred in paragraph (iii) (a) and (b) of
the order are not applicable.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there is an adequate internal control system
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of
its business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and
for the sale of goods. There was no sale of services. During
the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing
failure to correct major weaknesses in internal control system.

v) The Company has not accepted deposits in contravention of the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
CompaniesAct and the rules framed there under, as applicable.

vi) According to our information, the company is not required to
maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of the section 148 of the Companies Act.

vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and
as shown by our examination of the books of accounts:

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it and no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were in arrears, as on the last
day of the financial year, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of income tax or sales tax or wealth
tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or
value added tax or cess which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute except demand to the extent of
Rs.25,49,704/- (out of total demand of Rs.31,88,704/-) of
valued added tax and Sales Tax under Gujarat VAT Act
and Central Sales Tax Act pertaining to the Financial year
2002-03 against which appeals are pending before the
Commissioner of Commercial Tax (Appeals).

ANNEXURE TO AUDITOR’S REPORT
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(c) Amount required to be transferred to investor education
and protection fund in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act,1956 (1 of 1956) and
rules made thereunder has been transferred to such fund
within time.

viii) The company has no accumulated losses at the end of the
financial year and it has not incurred cash losses during the
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

ix) The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a
financial institution or bank or debenture holders.

x) The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by
others from bank or financial institutions.

xi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

For VAKIL JAIN & HINDOCHA
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.112894W

SURENDRA MODIANI
Place : Vadodara PARTNER
Date : 29-05-2015 Membership No.047966



25

MUNJAL AUTO

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2015
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Note No As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share Capital 2.1 100,000,000 100,000,000
Reserves and Surplus 2.2 1,969,383,628 1,763,396,601

2,069,383,628 1,863,396,601
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Borrowings 2.3 589,408,335 576,166,600
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 2.4 77,923,632 65,711,021
Long Term Provisions 2.5 60,503,774 42,043,460

727,835,741 683,921,081
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short Term Borrowings 2.6 18,935,548 50,984,051
Trade Payables 2.7 858,870,448 860,674,103
Other Current Liabilities 2.8 322,576,912 358,722,695
Short Term Provisions 2.9 186,853,392 174,846,785

1,387,236,300 1,445,227,634
TOTAL 4,184,455,669 3,992,545,316

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets
- Tangible Assets 2.10 1,735,293,532 1,310,637,958
- Intangible Assets 2.11 19,568,417 4,646,603
- Capital Work in Progress 2.12 217,044,436 416,293,605
Long Term Loans and Advances 2.13 69,497,350 79,566,813
Other Non Current Assets 2.14 238,125,662 223,203,617

2,279,529,397 2,034,348,596
Current Assets
Current Investments 2.15 267,040,494 453,236,561
Inventories 2.16 407,839,163 281,428,523
Trade Receivables 2.17 1,095,318,164 1,036,433,029
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.18 31,319,810 104,665,331
Short Term Loans and Advances 2.19 103,408,641 82,433,276

1,904,926,272 1,958,196,720
TOTAL 4,184,455,669 3,992,545,316

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (1 & 2)

For and on behalf of the Board
Vikram Shah Director
Naresh Kumar Chawla Director
Mahendra Sanghvi Director
Sudesh Kumar Duggal Director
Jal Ratanshaw Patel Director
Sudhir Kumar Munjal Chairman
Anju Munjal Whole Time Director
Anuj Munjal Whole Time Director
Waghodia
Date : 29th May, 2015

As per our report attached
For Vakil Jain & Hindocha
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112894W

Surendra Modiani
Partner
Membership No. 47966

Waghodia
Date : 29th May, 2015

S. K. Sharma
CFO

Rakesh Johari
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Revenue from operations
Revenue from Operations (Gross) 2.20 9,688,072,633 8,877,203,079
Less : Excise Duty 805,527,801 712,529,277
Revenue from Operations (Net) 8,882,544,832 8,164,673,802
Other Income 2.21 39,658,401 42,039,377

Total Revenue 8,922,203,233 8,206,713,179

Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 2.22 6,671,406,424 6,190,420,177
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Progress 2.23 (25,699,904) (9,514,956)
Employee Benefits Expenses 2.24 490,162,834 398,459,470
Finance Costs 2.25 86,322,632 60,147,579
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 2.26 148,354,434 124,486,441
Other Expenses 2.27 1,058,746,422 948,848,208

Total Expenses 8,429,292,842 7,712,846,919

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 492,910,391 493,866,260

Tax Expenses
Current Tax 96,070,731 100,859,091
Less : MAT Credit Entitlement 8,081,670 84,642,091
Net Current Tax 87,989,061 16,217,000
Deferred Tax 24,607,302 1,070,929

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 380,314,028 476,578,331
Earning per Equity Share (of Rs. 2/- each)

Basic 7.61 9.53
Diluted 7.61 9.53

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (1 & 2)

For and on behalf of the Board
Vikram Shah Director
Naresh Kumar Chawla Director
Mahendra Sanghvi Director
Sudesh Kumar Duggal Director
Jal Ratanshaw Patel Director
Sudhir Kumar Munjal Chairman
Anju Munjal Whole Time Director
Anuj Munjal Whole Time Director
Waghodia
Date : 29th May, 2015

As per our report attached
For Vakil Jain & Hindocha
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112894W

Surendra Modiani
Partner
Membership No. 47966

Waghodia
Date : 29th May, 2015

S. K. Sharma
CFO

Rakesh Johari
Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Tax and Extra Ordinary Items 492,910,391 493,866,260
Adjustments for :

Depreciation 148,354,434 124,486,441
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of fixed assets (Net) 609,849 (428,719)
Net Gain on Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuations (1,965,786) -

Profit on Sale of Investments (3,324,111) (10,590,488)
Diminution of Value of Investment - (796,991)
Interest Income (1,193,289) (1,019,991)
Interest Expenses and applicable foreign exchange fluctuations 86,322,632 61,913,908
Dividend Income (21,465,935) (15,200,866)

207,337,794 158,363,294
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 700,248,185 652,229,554
(Increase) / Decrease in Working Capital :

Inventories (126,410,640) (21,039,635)
Trade Receivables (58,885,135) (315,779,788)
Other Current Assets (20,956,451) (37,548,953)
Trade Payables (1,803,655) 153,860,623
Other Liabilities (37,752,853) 60,886,845

(245,808,734) (159,620,908)
Cash Generated from Operations 454,439,451 492,608,646
Income Tax paid (100,130,253) (98,408,385)
Net Cash from Operating Activities ..... A 354,309,198 394,200,261

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchases of Fixed Assets (416,349,236) (544,163,483)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 2,940,741 1,956,360
Sale of Investments 3,688,106,926 2,770,105,725

Purchase of Investments (3,477,120,814) (2,587,670,747)
Dividend Received 21,465,935 15,200,866
Interest Received 1,137,022 889,802

Net Cash used in Investing Activities ....... B (179,819,426) (343,681,477)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (Continued)
(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Dividend paid (125,000,000) (100,000,000)
Dividend Distribution Tax paid (21,243,750) (16,995,000)
Interest paid (82,284,707) (61,527,798)

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 180,000,000 325,000,000
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (167,258,333) (156,140,283)
Working Capital Finance from Banks (32,048,503) (3,950,780)

Net Cash from Financing Activities ....... C (247,835,293) (13,613,861)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents (73,345,521) 36,904,923
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 104,665,331 67,760,408
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 31,319,810 104,665,331

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (1 & 2)

As per our report attached
For Vakil Jain & Hindocha
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112894W

Surendra Modiani
Partner
Membership No. 47966

Waghodia
Date : 29th May, 2015

S. K. Sharma
CFO

Rakesh Johari
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board
Vikram Shah Director
Naresh Kumar Chawla Director
Mahendra Sanghvi Director
Sudesh Kumar Duggal Director
Jal Ratanshaw Patel Director
Sudhir Kumar Munjal Chairman
Anju Munjal Whole Time Director
Anuj Munjal Whole Time Director
Waghodia
Date : 29th May, 2015
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1. Significant Accounting Policies

Company Overview

Munjal Auto Industries Limited is a manufacturing company engaged in manufacture of Exhaust systems,Wheels, Rims, Fuel tanks
and other components for Auto Industries.

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis and comply with mandatory accounting standards which are applicable under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,
or as otherwise disclosed.

1.2 Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period
to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected inthe financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.3 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is primarily derived from Sales of auto components.

a) Sales are accounted inclusive of excise duty but net of Sales tax / Value added tax.

b) Sales are accounted on the date of removal of goods from the factory.

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis.

Dividend Income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established

1.4 Provisions and Contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
are determined by the best estimate of the outflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation at the reporting
date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow
of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow
of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

1.5 Employees Benefits

a. Gratuity

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation at each Balance Sheet date using
the projected unit credit method.Actuarial gains / losses are charged to revenue in the year inwhich they arise. The Company
contributes to a scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India to discharge the liabilities to the employees by
policy taken for this purpose with LIC of India in the name of “Munjal Auto Industries Limited Employees’ Gratuity Trust”.

b. Other long term employee benefits :

Other long-term employee benefit viz., leave encashment is recognized as an expense in the Statementof Profit and Loss as
and when it accrues. The Company determines the liability using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation carried
out as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of such benefit are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss.
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c. Superannuation

The Company makes contribution to a scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India to discharge superannuation
liabilities to the employees. The Company has no obligations to the Plan beyond its monthly contributions.

d. Provident Fund

Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund equal to a specified percentage
of the covered employees’ salary. Contributions of the company are recognized as expense in profit and loss account as
and when these are incurred.

1.6 Fixed assets, Intangible Assets and Capital Work in Progress

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Capital work-in-progress comprises
of the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date. Intangible assets are
recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment.

Cost of leasehold land has not been amortised over lease period due to the long tenure of the leaseand smallness of amount.

1.7 Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation has been provided as per straight-line method in the manner and at the rates specified in Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013 except that in case of expenditure on software. Cost of software is amortised over 3 to 10 years considering its useful life.

1.8 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in Foreign Currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the year-end are restated in Indian Rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of the
balance sheet.

Any gain or loss on account of exchange difference either on a settlement of the obligation or on a translation is recognized in the
statement of Profit & Loss.

1.9 Income Taxes

Income tax is accrued in the same period that the related revenue and expenses arise. A provision ismade for income tax annually,
based on the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is
estimated that a liability due to disallowances or other matters is probable. Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with
the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future income tax liability,
is recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax after the
tax holiday period and the resultant asset can be measured reliably. The Company offsets, on a year on year basis,
the current tax assets and liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

The differences that result between the profit considered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements
are identified, and thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded for timing differences,
namely the differences that originate in one accounting period and reverse in another, based on thetax effect of the aggregate amount
of timing difference. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing differences at the end of an accounting period
based on enacted or substantively enacted regulations. Deferred tax assets in situation where unabsorbed depreciation
and carry forward business loss exists, are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred
tax assets, other than in situation of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward business loss, are recognized only if there is
reasonable certainty that they will be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective
carrying values at each reporting date.

Deferred tax in respect of Haridwar Unit availing deduction under section 80IC of Income Tax Act, 1961 in respect of timing differences
which reverse during tax holiday period, are not recognized to the extent the income is subject to deduction.
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1.10 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

1.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets arecapitalized as part of the cost of the
assets till the asset is ready for use. Interest on other borrowing is charged to Profit & Loss Account.

1.12 Investments

Current Investments are stated at cost or fair value whichever is lower, determined on individual investment basis.

1.13 Inventories

Inventories other than scrap are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost ofpurchases is ascertained on weighted
average method.

Scrap is valued at estimated net realisable value.

Cost of Work in Process and Finished Goods include cost of materials and other inputs plus appropriate share of labour and overheads.
Excise duty is included in the value of finished goods inventory.

1.14 Impairment of Assets

The Carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment
in their value caused by any internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, recoverable amount being the greater of the assets’ net selling price and value in use.

1.15 Operating Leases

Lease charges paid for operating leases are charged to profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct
expenses at the time of inception of lease are charged to Profit & Loss Account.

1.16 Warranty Claims

Provision is made for estimated liability on account of warranty claims, the cost of replacement of goods sold as per the terms of
warranty, based on historical information and corrective actions to reduce the claims.

1.17 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow
of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the note.

1.18 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
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2 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015
Note Particulars As at As at
No March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.1 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
100,000,000 (100,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.2/- (Rs.2/-) each 200,000,000 200,000,000
Unclassified Shares 50,000,000 50,000,000

250,000,000 250,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
50,000,000 (50,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.2/- (Rs.2/-) each 100,000,000 100,000,000

100,000,000 100,000,000

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.2/- (Previous year Rs.2/-). Each
holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the number of share capital as at March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014
is set out below;
Particulars As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Number of Shares at the beginning 50,000,000 100,000,000 50,000,000 100,000,000
Number of Shares at the end 50,000,000 100,000,000 50,000,000 100,000,000
Shares in the company held by each Shareholder holding more than 5% shares
Particulars As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014

No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
Thakur Devi Investments Private Limited 37,403,225 74.81% 37,403,225 74.81%
(Holding Company)

Note Particulars As at As at
No March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.2 RESERVE & SURPLUS

Capital Reserve
Profit on re-issue of forfeited shares 209,150 209,150
General Reserve
Opening Balance 284,872,738 237,214,905
Add : Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss - 47,657,833
Closing Balance 284,872,738 284,872,738
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 1,478,314,713 1,195,637,965
Add : Profit for the year 380,314,028 476,578,331
Less : Adjustment for depreciaiton as per Note 2.28 Q 23,879,942 -
Total 1,834,748,799 1,672,216,296
Less :
- Dividend @ Rs. 2.50/- per Share (Previous year Rs.2.50/- per Share) 125,000,000 125,000,000
- Dividend Tax 25,447,059 21,243,750
- Amount transferred to General Reserve - 47,657,833

Closing Balance 1,684,301,741 1,478,314,713
Total Balance 1,969,383,628 1,763,396,601
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Note Particulars As at As at
No March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.3 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Term Loans from Banks 589,408,335 576,166,600
- Secured (refer note no. 2.28 C) 589,408,335 576,166,600

2.4 DEFERRED TAXES
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Accumulated Depreciation 105,059,444 88,949,319
Deferred Tax Assets
Employees Benefits deductable on payment 27,135,812 23,238,298

77,923,632 65,711,021

2.5 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
Provisions for Employee Benefits
- Leave Benefits 31,147,601 24,324,435
- Gratuity 25,588,768 13,919,938
Provision for Warranties 3,767,405 3,799,087

60,503,774 42,043,460

CURRENT LIABILIES
2.6 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Loans repayable on demand
From Banks 18,935,548 50,984,051
- Secured 18,935,548 50,984,051
These loans are secured by a first charge on inventories, receivables and
all other current assets of the Company.

2.7 TRADE PAYABLES 858,870,448 860,674,103
858,870,448 860,674,103

2.8 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
1 Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (refer note no. 2.28 C) 193,045,832 193,545,900
2 Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 7,857,344 5,785,205
3 Unpaid Dividends 7,352,552 6,096,552
4 Other Payables

- Statutory Liabilities 37,789,279 17,685,354
- Creditors for Purchase of Capital Goods 15,747,313 55,459,387
- Salary and Other Benefits to Employees 31,657,403 44,258,547
- Advances from Customer 15,061 7,709,400
- Deposits from Contractors 2,979,679 2,864,172
- Expenses Payable 26,132,449 25,318,178

322,576,912 358,722,695
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Note Particulars As at As at
No March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.9 SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

a Provisions for Employee Benefits
- Leave Benefits 25,272,979 17,521,664
- Gratuity 9,046,766 8,944,178

b Other Liabilities
- Provision for Warranties 1,855,588 1,871,193
- Proposed Dividend 125,000,000 125,000,000
- Provision for

Tax on Dividend 25,447,059 21,243,750
Wealth Tax 231,000 266,000

186,853,392 174,846,785
A. FIXED ASSETS Current Year

(Amount in Rs.)
PARTICULARS Gross Block Depreciation/ Amortisation Block Net Block

As on Additions Deduction As at Opening For the Deduction As at As at As at
April 1, March 31, Balance as year March 31, March 31, March 31,

2014 2015 on April 1, per iod 2015 2015 2014
2014

2.10 TANGIBLE ASSETS
Land
- Freehold Land 162,669,102 - - 162,669,102 - - - - 162,669,102 162,669,102
- Leasehold Land 7,365,133 - - 7,365,133 - - - - 7,365,133 7,365,133
Building 426,048,905 126,419,353 - 552,468,258 80,330,660 56,176,381 - 136,507,041 415,961,217 345,718,245
Plant and Equipments 1,326,841,585 471,956,629 2,545,969 1,796,252,245 598,821,984 110,845,769 478,417 709,189,336 1,087,062,909 728,019,600
Furniture and Fixture 45,971,944 733,091 - 46,705,035 15,611,180 2,389,904 - 18,001,084 28,703,951 30,360,764
Vehicles 50,880,957 8,756,262 3,412,410 56,224,809 29,752,446 4,534,136 2,046,753 32,239,828 23,984,980 21,128,511
Office Equipments 15,817,392 1,378,074 134,492 17,060,974 4,715,753 6,009,047 53,630 10,671,170 6,389,805 11,101,639
Computers 14,292,742 2,577,928 247,155 16,623,515 10,017,780 3,659,935 210,634 13,467,081 3,156,435 4,274,963

2,049,887,760 611,821,337 6,340,026 2,655,369,072 739,249,802 183,615,173 2,789,436 920,075,539 1,735,293,532 1,310,637,958
2.11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software 25,221,072 15,935,731 - 41,156,803 20,574,469 1,013,916 - 21,588,385 19,568,417 4,646,603
25,221,072 15,935,731 - 41,156,803 20,574,469 1,013,916 - 21,588,385 19,568,417 4,646,603

2.12 CAPITAL WORK
IN PROGRESS 217,044,436 416,293,605

B FIXED ASSETS Previous Year
PARTICULARS Gross Block Depreciation/ Amortisation Block Net Block

As on Additions Deduction As at Opening For the Deduction As at As at As at
April 1, March 31, Balance as year March 31, March 31, March 31,

2013 2014 on April 1, per iod 2014 2014 2013
2013

2.10 TANGIBLE ASSETS
Land
- Freehold land 162,669,102 - - 162,669,102 - - - - 162,669,102 162,669,102
- Leasehold land 7,365,133 - - 7,365,133 - - - - 7,365,133 7,365,133
Building 418,912,289 7,136,616 - 426,048,905 66,777,529 13,553,131 - 80,330,660 345,718,245 352,134,760
Plant and Equipments 1,176,212,398 151,756,808 1,127,621 1,326,841,585 500,622,810 98,421,625 222,451 598,821,985 728,019,600 675,589,588
Furniture and Fixture 45,352,055 619,889 - 45,971,944 14,518,799 1,092,381 - 15,611,180 30,360,764 30,833,256
Vehicles 45,202,888 10,787,226 5,109,157 50,880,957 26,951,538 7,812,794 5,011,887 29,752,446 21,128,511 18,251,350
Office Equipments 13,579,671 2,941,963 704,242 15,817,392 3,980,114 914,680 179,041 4,715,753 11,101,639 9,599,557
Computers 13,561,805 730,937 - 14,292,742 8,736,490 1,281,290 - 10,017,780 4,274,963 4,825,315

1,882,855,341 173,973,439 6,941,020 2,049,887,761 621,587,280 123,075,901 5,413,379 739,249,802 1,310,637,958 1,261,268,062
2.11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software 25,221,072 - - 25,221,072 15,348,285 5,226,184 - 20,574,469 4,646,603 9,872,787
25,221,072 - - 25,221,072 15,348,285 5,226,184 - 20,574,469 4,646,603 9,872,787

2.12 CAPITAL WORK IN
PROGRESS 416,293,605 56,511,116
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Note Particulars As at As at
No March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.13 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Capital Advances 48,801,165 60,959,827
Security Deposits 20,696,185 18,606,986

69,497,350 79,566,813

2.14 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
MAT Credit entitlement 238,125,662 223,203,617

238,125,662 223,203,617

CURRENT ASSETS As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014
2.15 CURRENT INVESTMENTS Unit Amount Unit Amount

INVESTMENT IN MUTUAL FUNDS (UNQUOTED)
HDFC High Int Fund - Dynamic Plan 610,105 24,170,846 610,105 24,170,846
HDFC Liquid Fund Growth - - 2,095,517 52,940,924
HDFC Equity Fund 19,181 8,500,000 - -
HDFC Midcap Opportunities Fund 269,309 8,500,000 - -
HDFC Top 200 Fund 15,118 5,000,000 - -
Reliance Liquid Fund Growth Plan 21 67,999 88,669 276,693,919
Reliance Small Cap Fund 228,042 5,011,922 - -
Reliance Liquid Fund 47,510 72,630,890 - -
Reliance Equity Opportunities Fund 67,584 5,000,000 - -
DSP Blackrock Microcap Fund 81,651 3,035,852 - -
ICICI Prudence Flexible Income Plan 162 41,313 - -
ICICI Prudence Value Discovery Fund 27,094 2,500,000 - -
ICICI Prudence Top Fund 100 33,361 7,500,000 - -
ICICI Prudence Banking and Financial Fund 148,334 5,000,000 - -
ICICI Equity Arbitrage Fund - GP 2,752,395 50,000,000 - -
IDFC Arbitrage Fund - GP 287,963 50,081,672 - -
IDFC Money Manager TPGT - - 995,232 20,021,178
IDFC Fixed Term Plan - - 1,622,585 16,225,850
IDFC Ultra Short Term Growth Plan - - 1,298,938 23,183,844
IDFC Banking Debt Fund 1,828,103 20,000,000 1,828,102 20,000,000
SBI Dynamic Bond Fund Growth - - 1,377,619 20,000,000

267,040,494 453,236,561
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Note Particulars As at As at
No March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.16 INVENTORIES

1 Raw Materials 253,724,673 153,932,088
2 Work in Process 60,749,166 60,537,698
3 Work in Process - Stock in Transit 30,280,422 11,293,905
4 Finished Goods 26,734,444 20,232,525
5 Store and Spares 36,350,458 35,432,307

407,839,163 281,428,523

2.17 TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured Considered Good)
Debts outstanding for a period not exceeding six months from the date
they are due for payment 1,095,318,164 1,036,433,029

1,095,318,164 1,036,433,029

2.18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BALANCE WITH BANKS IN FIXED DEPOSITS
- Held as margin money or security against borrowings 248,570 3,510,557
In Current Accounts 23,447,993 94,750,756
Dividend Accounts 7,352,552 6,096,552
Cash in Hand 270,695 307,466

31,319,810 104,665,331

2.19 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured Considered Good)
Balance with Government Authorities
CENVAT / Service Tax Credit 63,141,882 46,856,096
Excise duty - current account 2,395,279 2,414,677
VAT / Sales tax credit 8,274,708 2,655,499
Income Tax (net of provision) 2,051,846 4,132,731

75,863,715 56,059,003
Others
Loans and advances to Employees 1,595,499 351,192
Advance to Suppliers 8,559,833 9,053,258
Prepaid Expenses 10,601,104 10,490,632
Others 6,788,490 6,479,191

27,544,926 26,374,273
103,408,641 82,433,276
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Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products 9,614,163,414 8,813,341,131
Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap 73,909,219 63,861,948

9,688,072,633 8,877,203,079
Less: Excise Duty 805,527,801 712,529,277
Revenue from Operations (Net) 8,882,544,832 8,164,673,802
Mufflers 8,812,003,906 8,115,100,527
Motorcycle Rims 240,936,788 229,075,834
Scooter Wheels 377,203,747 322,267,691
Other Components 184,016,973 146,897,079

9,614,161,414 8,813,341,131

2.21 OTHER INCOME
Interest Income
- Interest from Fixed Deposit 431,042 831,787
- Interest from Others 762,247 188,204
Dividend Income
- From Current Investments 21,465,935 15,200,866
- Net gain on sale of investment 3,324,111 10,590,488
- Cash Discount received 5,363,591 4,717,202
Dimnution in value of Investment written back - 796,991
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation 1,965,786 -
(other than considered as finance cost)
Other Non-Operating Income
(Net of expenses directly attributable to such income)
- Profit on Sales of Fixed Assets (Net) - 428,719
- Liability / Provisions no longer required written back 3,563,704 7,397,178
- Miscellaneous Income 2,781,985 1,887,942

39,658,401 42,039,377

2.22 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Purchases of Raw Materials and Packing Materials 6,771,199,009 6,199,387,457
Add: Opening Balance of Stock 153,932,088 144,964,808

6,925,131,097 6,344,352,265
Less: Closing Balance of Stock 253,724,673 153,932,088
Consumption of Materials 6,671,406,424 6,190,420,177
Product wise details
CR and SS Strips 1,294,489,348 1,152,917,523
Nickel 220,328,735 192,721,515
Catalytic Converter 1,602,431,670 1,591,409,955
Paint & Chemicals 388,082,344 390,579,906
Components and BOPs 2,873,985,529 2,714,522,149
Others 292,088,798 148,269,130

6,671,406,424 6,190,420,177
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Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.23 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND

WORK IN PROGRESS
Finished Goods
At the beginning of the Accounting Period 20,232,525 30,594,484
At the end of the Accounting Period 26,734,444 20,232,525

(6,501,919) 10,361,959
Work in Progress
At the beginning of the Accounting Period 60,537,698 43,981,870
At the end of the Accounting Period 60,749,166 60,537,698

(211,468) (16,555,828)
Work in process - Stock in Transit
At the beginning of the Accounting Period 11,293,905 7,972,818
At the end of the Accounting Period 30,280,422 11,293,905

(18,986,517) (3,321,087)
Total (25,699,904) (9,514,956)

2.24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages 415,137,517 338,717,886
Contribution to

Provident & Other Fund 28,140,573 25,598,577
Superannuation Scheme 7,056,826 6,167,537
Gratuity Fund 18,661,200 9,756,256

Other Expenses
Staff Welfare Expense 21,166,718 18,219,214

490,162,834 398,459,470

2.25 FINANCIAL COSTS
Interest Expense 70,986,070 52,507,253
Other Borrowing Costs 1,422,814 1,046,426
Applicable net gain/loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 13,913,748 6,593,900

86,322,632 60,147,579

2.26 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
(excludes amount debited to retained earnings as per note 2.28 Q)
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 148,354,434 128,302,085
Less : Capitalised on Account of Tools Manufactured - 3,815,644

148,354,434 124,486,441
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Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2.27 OTHER EXPENSES

Manufacturing Expense :
Consumtion of Stores and Spare Parts

Opening Stock 35,432,307 32,874,908
Add: Purchases 323,809,980 285,349,653
Total 359,242,287 318,224,561
Less:Closing Stock 36,350,458 35,432,307

322,891,829 282,792,254
Power and Fuel 222,956,770 204,076,986
Rent 12,882,696 12,861,012
Repairs to Buildings 2,777,284 6,155,052
Repairs to Machinery 12,093,567 11,604,572
Repairs and Maintenance others 6,117,935 6,912,412
Insurance Premium 11,447,227 7,572,229
CSR expenditure 3,799,239 -
Rates and Taxes excluding Taxes on Income 1,681,751 4,778,560
Wages to Contractors 191,202,337 153,426,536
Job Work Charges 45,185,755 43,570,411
Freight Inward 16,029,316 11,924,810
Freight and Cartage (Outward) 97,565,480 93,117,634
Loss on Fixed Assets Sold / Discarded (Net) 609,849 -
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation - 1,766,329
(other than considered as finance cost)
Miscellaneous Expenses 111,505,387 108,289,411

1,058,746,422 948,848,208

2.28 ADDITIONAL INFORMATIONS

A Addition to Fixed Assets and Capital work in progress during the year included Rs.89,26,780/- (previous year Rs.1,18,92,521/-)
being borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-16) on borrowing cost asspecified in the Companies
(Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

B The Company as well as various industrial units in Waghodia have disputed their liability to pay octroi duty and hence the company
deposited the amount of Rs. 15.45 lac under protest which is held in a separate bank account in thename of Sarpanch, the Waghodia
Gram Panchayat and the Company as the second party under a Court directive. By virtue of a subsequent notification of the State
Government of Gujarat, the company, like other industrial units in the notified area of Waghodia, isnot required to pay the octroi
Duty from 19th July,1997. The company believes it has no liability for octroi duty even for the earlier period. Association for Industrial
Units in Waghodia has filed a suit for recovery of amounts paid under protest, which is still pending for final decision. Therefore,
the said amount of Rs.15.45 Lac (Previous Year Rs.15.45 lac) is included in Balance Sheet under thehead “Loans & Advances”
and no provision is made for liability of octroi in this respect. In the absence of clarity regarding rights of respective parties, interest
credited by the bank amounting to Rs.17.07 Lac (Previous Year: Rs.15.83 Lac) on the aforesaid amount till 31st March 2015 is
not accounted for.
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C Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings including current maturities

Nature of security Terms of Repayment
Term loan outstanding Rs.4.50 Crores Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments of Rs.90

Lacs commencing from August, 2011.
Term loan outstanding Rs.2.48 Crores Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments of

Rs.27.50 Lacs commencing from June, 2012
Term loan outstanding Rs.3.50 Crores Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments of Rs.25

lacs commencing from September, 2013
Term loan outstanding Rs.8.00 Crores Repayable in 24 equal quarterly instalments of

Rs.46.88 lacs commencing from January, 2016.
Above loans are secured by way of mortgage/charge created on Fixed Assets of the Company’s plant atBawal, District - Rewari,
Haryana.
Term loan outstanding Rs.11.03 Crores secured by way of mortgage / Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments of
charge created Plant and Machinery acquired out of the sanctioned Rs.78.75 Lacs commencing from September, 2013
Term Loan for Waghodia, District- Vadodara, Gujarat.
Term loan outstanding Rs.11.86 Crores secured by way of mortgage / Repayable in initial two quarterly instalments of Rs. 25
charge created Plant and Machinery acquired out of the sanctioned Lacs and remaining 22 quarterly instalment of Rs.66.00
Term Loan for Waghodia, District- Vadodara, Gujarat. Lacs commencing from December, 2013
Term loan outstanding Rs.10.00 Crores secured by way of mortgage / Repayable in 24 equal quarterly instalments of
charge created Plant and Machinery acquired out of the sanctioned Rs.41.66 lacs commencing from January, 2016.
Term Loan for Waghodia, District- Vadodara, Gujarat.
Term loan outstanding Rs.0.53 Crores secured by way of charge Repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments of
created on fixed assets funded out of term loan pertaining to the Rs.153.125 Lacs commencing from April, 2011
Company’s plant at Haridwar, District - Haridwar, Uttarakhand.
Term loan outstanding Rs.26.35 Crores secured by way of charge Repayable in 24 equal quarterly instalments of
created on fixed assets funded out of term loan pertaining to the Rs.114.58 Lacs commencing from December, 2014
Company’s plant at Dharuhera, District - Rewari, Haryana.

D The company has amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 as at 31st March, 2015 as identified to the extent of information available as per following details

As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

The Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid
- Principal Amount 13,909,030 19,077,364
- Interest 364,235 792,434
Amount of Interest paid by Company along-with the amounts of payments
made beyond the appointed day for the year ended - -
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment beyond appoineted day during the year 364,235 792,434
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable for earlier year 3,531,471 2,739,037

E During the year, there was amicable settelement with GIIC in respect of their claim for interest on LEEP loan which was taken and
repaid earlier. In persuant thereof, the company paid Rs.39.10 lacs as full and final payment whichamount is debited to Profit and
Loss account for the year.

F Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard - 15 (Revised) ‘Employee Benefits’
i Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution plan are recognised as expenses when contributions become due.
Amounts recognised for the year are as under.

(Amount in Rs.)
2014-15 2013-14

Employer’s contribution to Provident and other Funds 28,140,573 25,598,577
Employer’s contribution to Superannuation Fund 7,056,826 6,167,537
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ii Defined Benefit Plans
The employees’ gratuity fund scheme managed by a Trust is a defined benefit plan. Relevent details are as under :

(Amount in Rs.)
2014-15 2013-14
Gratuity Gratuity

(Funded) (Funded)
I Change in benefit obligation

Opening benefit obligation 59,506,021 49,189,997
Service cost for the year 6,978,013 6,401,846
Interest cost for the year 4,597,433 3,849,515
Actuarial losses / (gains) on curtailments 9,815,209 2,206,786
Benefits paid (2,361,741) (2,142,123)
Closing defined benefit obligation 78,534,935 59,506,021

II Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 36,641,905 30,112,929
Expected Return on Plan Assets 3,023,877 2,962,449
Contribution by employer 6,895,281 5,969,208
Benefits paid (2,361,741) (2,142,123)
Actuarial (loss) / gain on plan assets 258,720 (260,558)
Expenses deducted from the fund (558,641) -
Closing balance of fair value of plan assets 43,899,401 36,641,905

III Actual Return on Plan Assets
Actual return on plan assets 3,282,597 2,962,449
Expected return on plan assets 3,023,877 3,223,007
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets 258,720 (260,558)

IV Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 78,534,934 59,506,021
Plan assets at the end of the period at fair value 43,899,401 36,641,905
Liability recognised in the balance sheet 34,635,533 22,864,116

V Amount Recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 6,978,013 6,401,846
Interest on obligation 4,597,433 3,849,515
Expected return on plan assets (3,023,877) (2,962,449)
Net actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in the year 9,550,990 2,467,344
Expenses deducted from the fund 558,641 -
Total included in ‘employee benefit expense’ 18,661,200 9,756,256

VI Investment Details (% invested) - -
Policy of insurance 100% 100%

VII Acturial Assumptions
Discount rate current 7.80% 9.00%
Rate of return on plan assets current 8.75% 9.25%
Proportion of employees opting for early retirement - -
Annual increase in salary costs 7.50% 7.50%
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Note Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
G The details of provision for warranty claims as under

Provision at beginning of the year 5,670,280 3,182,405
Provision made during the year 4,014,884 3,431,490
Amount utilised during the year 4,062,170 943,615
Provision at end of the year 5,622,993 5,670,280

H Details of Contingent Liabilities
I Unexpired Bank Guarantee (Net of Margin Money) 3,308,000 6,188,000
II Unexpired Letter of Credit (Net of Margin Money) 1,608,285 60,100,000
III Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on

Capital Account and not provided for (Net of Advances) 50,965,144 73,514,001
IV Estimated amount on Account of pending cases under the Labour Laws 5,496,489 9,553,531
V Income Tax Matters in dispute 4,764,957 8,400,087
VI Sales Tax Matters in dispute 3,188,704 3,188,704
VII Excise Matters 23,696,013 5,901,332

I Payment to the Auditors
As Auditors 1,050,000 1,050,000
For Taxation Matters 250,000 250,000
For Other Services 150,000 10,000
Total 1,450,000 1,310,000

J Value of Imports Calculated on C.I.F basis by the
Company during the financial year in respect of
Raw Materials 37,706,676 44,502,140
Stores and Spare Parts 98,960 274,804
Capital Goods 7,052,015 10,405,096
Total 44,857,651 55,182,039

K Expenditure in Foreign Currency during the
Financial Year on Account of
Professional and consultation fees - 1,318,061
Interest 5,685,965 4,723,423
Bank Charges 43,991 -
Foreign Travelling 1,237,072 634,774
Business Promotion 2,695,168 402,856
Total 9,662,196 7,079,114

L Break up of Consumption
I Raw Materials;

Total Consumption
Imported
Value 37,706,676 44,502,140
% of total 1% 0%
Indigenous
Value 6,633,699,748 6,140,912,102
% of total 99% 100%

II Stores and Spare Parts
Imported
Value 98,960 274,804
% of total 0% 0%
Indigenous
Value 322,792,869 282,517,450
% of total 100% 100%



43

MUNJAL AUTO

Note Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

M Earning in Foreign Exchange
I Export of Goods on FOB basis 133,759,478 83,309,617

Total 133,759,478 83,309,617
N The Company has taken premises under operating lease. These lease agreements are normally for a period of less than one

year. These are generally not “non-cancellable” and are renewable by mutually agreed terms. Rental expenses towards cancellable
operating leases charged to profit and loss account amounts to Rs.1,28,82,696/- (previous year Rs.1,28,61,012/-)

O Segment Reporting
As the Company’s business activity falls within a single primary business segment viz. Automobile Parts and single geographical
segment, the disclosure requirements of Accounting Standard (AS-17) “Segment Reporting”, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India are not applicable.

P Related Party Disclosure
a) Key Management Personnel

Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal Chairman & Managing Director
Mrs. Anju Munjal Whole Time Director
Mr. Anuj Munjal Whole Time Director

b) Enterprise which has ability to control the Company
Thakurdevi Investments Pvt. Ltd. Holding Company

c) Transactions with the related parties during the year :
Nature of Transactions For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
a) Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration 54,475,471 40,262,263
Commission - 14,713,321
Balance Outstanding at the end of the year
- Payables (Other than Commission) 339,580 2,700,000

b) Enterprises which are able to exercise control over the Company
Dividend Paid 93,508,063 74,806,450

Q Pursuant to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 (The “Act”), the company has applied and estimated useful life as specified
in schedule II. Accordingly the carrying value is being depreciated over the revised / remaining useful life. The written down value
after retaining the residual value of fixed assets whose life have been expired as on 1st April, 2014 have been recognised net of
tax in the opening retained earnings.

R Details of expenditure incurred on “Corporate Social Responsibilities Activities”
a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 9,293,916
b) Amount spent during the year;

Contribution to Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund & Registered Trusts 3,799,239
S Figures of the previous year have been regrouped and / or recast, wherever considered necessary to conform to the grouping

of the current year.
For and on behalf of the Board
Vikram Shah Director
Naresh Kumar Chawla Director
Mahendra Sanghvi Director
Sudesh Kumar Duggal Director
Jal Ratanshaw Patel Director
Sudhir Kumar Munjal Chairman
Anju Munjal Whole Time Director
Anuj Munjal Whole Time Director
Waghodia
Date : 29th May, 2015

As per our report attached
For Vakil Jain & Hindocha
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112894W

Surendra Modiani
Partner
Membership No. 47966

Waghodia
Date : 29th May, 2015

S. K. Sharma
CFO

Rakesh Johari
Company Secretary

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company believes that sound corporate governance is critical for enhancing long-term stakeholder’s value and retaining investor trust. Your
Company is committed towards transparency in all its dealings and to that end ensures that its performance goals are met with integrity. Good
Governance goes beyond working results and financial propriety and is a pre-requisite for attainmentof excellent performance.

Governance is moulded in culture of your Company that is built upon core values, beliefs and ethics.

A Report on compliance with the Code of CorporateGovernance asprescribed by the Securities andExchange Board of India and incorporated in
the ListingAgreement is given below:

1. Board of Directors

The composition of the Board of your Company is in conformity with Clause49 of the ListingAgreement, as amended from time to time. The
Executive Chairmanof the Company is a Promoterand the number ofNon-Executive independentDirectors is more thanone-half of the total
number of Directors. The Board reviewsand approvesstrategy; oversees the actionsand results of management toensure that the long term
objectives of enhancing stakeholders’ value and other stakeholders’ interest are met.

Chairman & Managing Director and Whole Time Directors are the Executive Directors looking after theday-today management of your
Company. TheChairman & Managing Director andTwo Whole TimeDirectors belong to the Company’s promoter group.The remaining Non-
Executive Directorscomprising of six independent Directors possess requisite qualificationsand experience in general corporate management,
finance, banking and other allied fields which enable them tocontribute effectively to theCompanyintheir capacity as Directors.

Apart from reimbursement of expenses incurred in the discharge of their duties and the remunerationthat these Directorswould beentitled to
under the Companies Act, 2013 as Non-Executive Directors, none of these directors has any other material pecuniary relationships or
transactions with the Company, its Promoters, its Directors, its Senior Management or its SubsidiariesandAssociates which in their judgment
would affect their independence.None of the Directors,other thanthose belonging to thepromoter group of the Company are inter-se related
to each other.

The Senior Management of the Company have made disclosures to the Board confirming that there are no material financial and/or
commercial transactions between them and the Company which could have potential conflict of interestwith the Company at large.

a. Composition of the Board

The Board comprises of nine Directors as on 31st March 2015. The names and categories of Directors, the numberof Directorships and
Committee positionsheld by them inother companies are given below. None of theExecutive Directorsis an independent director in more
than three listed companies and none of Non Executive is an independent director in more than sevenlisted companies. None of the
Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committeesand Chairman of more than 5 Committees(as specified in Clause 49
of the ListingAgreement), across all the companies.

b. Board Procedure

A detailedAgenda folder is sent to each Director in advance of the Board and to the Director concerned in advance of the committee
meetings.To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively, the Chairman Managing Director apprises the Board at every
meeting of the overall performance of theCompany, followed by presentations as and when necessary.The Boardalso inter alia reviews
strategy andbusiness plans, annual operatingand capital expenditure budgets, investment and exposure limits, compliance reportsof all
laws applicable to the Company as well as steps taken by your Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, review of major legal
issues, adoptionofquarterly/half years/ annual results, significant labour issues, transactions pertaining topurchase/disposal of property(ies),
major accounting provisions and write-offs/impairment etc., Minutes of Meetings of theAudit and other Committees of the Board and
informationon recruitment of officers just below the Board level including the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.
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c. Number of Board Meetings, Attendance of Directors at Meetings of the Board and at the Annual GeneralMeeting

Five Board meetings were held on May 19, 2014, August 08, 2014, November 10,2014, February02,2015 &March 28,2015 in due
compliance with the stipulated provisions. The attendance record of members of the Board is given below

Name of Director Number of Board Attendance No. of Outside No. of Committee Number of
Meeting during at last AGM Directorship Membership held* Committee
the year 2014-15 held on held Chairmanship

August held*
Held Attended 08,2014 (excluding Private Companies, Foreign

Companies, Section 25 Companies)
Promoter
Executive Directors
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal 5 5 Yes None None None
Mrs. Anju Munjal 5 4 Yes None None None
Mr.Anuj Munjal 5 5 Yes None None None
Promoter Non-
Executive Directors
Mr. Satyanand Munjal 3 None No None None None
(Resigned w.e.f. 02.02.2015)
Non-Executive and
Independent Directors
Mr. Vikram Shah 5 5 Yes None 1 1
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla 5 4 Yes None 1 1
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi 5 3 No 2 4 None
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal 5 5 Yes 5 4 3
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Duggal 5 4 Yes None None None
Mr. Jal Ratanshaw Patel 5 5 No 5 3 4
* Includes onlyAudit Committee and Stakeholders’Relationship Committee.

d. Board Evaluation
In compliance with the CompaniesAct, 2013 and clause 49 of the ListingAgreement,the Independent Directors have carried out a
performance review of the Board as a wholeon the following parameters:
a) The size and composition (Executive, Non-executive, Independent Directors and their background in terms of knowledge, skill &

experience) of the Board is appropriate.
b) The Board conducts itself in such a manner sensitive to the interests ofall shareholders.
c) The Board isactive in addressing matters of strategic concerns in its review.
d) The Board makes well informed highquality decision on the basis of full information and insights.
e) TheBoard is effective in establishingacorporateenvironment thatwould enableproficient and effectivedisclosure, fiscal accountability

high ethical standards and compliance withapplicable law and regulations.
f) The Board meeting time is appropriately allocated between management presentation and Board discussion.
g) TheBoard has a good understanding of the company’s key drivers of performance and associated risks,threatsand opportunities.
h) The Board devotes considerable amount time in developing the business strategy and annual business plan.
i) The Board clearly defined the mandates of its various committees.
j) The Board is effective in formulating and monitoring various financial and non-financial policiesand plans.
k) The Board is effective in developingacorporategrievances structure thatallowsand encourages theBoardto fulfill its responsibilities.
l) TheBoard pays considerable attention to the quality of financial statement, reporting controls.
m) The Board gives effective advice and assistance for activity company’s mission/vision.
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e. Director seeking re-appointment
According to the Section 152 ofCompaniesAct, 2013,one-thirdof theExecutive Directors retires byrotation and, if eligible, offers himself
for re-election at theAnnual General Meeting of shareholders.Accordingly, Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal,Director will retire in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal, Director, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.
The Board has recommended the reappointment of Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal as a retiring Director.
The detailed resume of Shri Sudhir Kumar Munjal is provided in the Notice to theAnnualGeneral Meeting.

f. Code of Conduct
The Company has formulated Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management employees of the Company. Board
members and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed their compliance with Code of Conduct for theyear ended 31st March,
2015.

g. CEO/CFO Certification
As required under Clause 49 IX of the ListingAgreement with the Stock Exchanges, CMDand the CFO ofthe Company have certified
to the Board regarding the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

2. Remuneration to Directors
a. Remuneration Policy

While deciding the remuneration of Executive Directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers the performanceof your
Company, the current trends in the industry, the qualificationof theappointees(s), their experience, past performance and other relevant
factors. The Board/Committee regularly keeps track of the market trends in terms of compensation levels and practices in relevant
industries. Stayingabreast with such information is used to review remuneration policies.

b. Remuneration paid/payable to CMD/Executive Directors (Whole-time Directors) for the year ended 31st March, 2015
Following is the remuneration paid/payable to the Executive Directors during the year ended 31st March, 2015.

(Amount in Rs.)
Name of Directors Fixed Variable Benefits, Commission Sitting Fee Total Notice

salary salary Perquisites & Compensa- period
and allowance tion (in days)

allowances
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal 96,00,000 - 1,24,66,165 - - 2,20,66,165 180
Ms. Anju Munjal 84,00,000 - 90,23,412 - - 1,74,23,412 180
Mr.Anuj Munjal 72,00,000 - 77,85,894 - - 1,49,85,894 180
Mr. Satyanand Munjal - - - - - - -
Mr. Vikram Shah - - - - 2,46,000 2,46,000 -
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla - - - - 1,70,000 1,70,000 -
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi - - - - 1,40,000 1,40,000 -
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal - - - - 2,00,000 2,00,000 -
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Duggal - - - - 80,000 80,000 -
Mr. Jal Ratanshaw Patel - - - - 1,20,000 1,20,000 -

3. Risk Management
Your Company has a well-defined riskmanagement framework in place. Further, your Company has established procedures to periodically
place before the Board, the risk assessment and minimization procedures being followed by the Company and steps takenby it to mitigate
these risks.The Risk Management policy was adopted by Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 28, 2015.

4. Committees of the Board
a. Audit Committee

TheAudit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with provisions of the clause 49 of the ListingAgreement entered with Stock
Exchanges read with section 177 of CompaniesAct, 2013.
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This Committee comprises solely of Independent Directors viz.Mr. Vikram Shah, Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla, Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi
and Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal.All the Members of the Committee possess strong accounting and financialmanagement knowledge.
The Company’sAudit Committee functions under the Chairmanship of Mr. Vikram Shah. FourAudit Committee meetings were held on
May 19, 2014, August 08, 2014, November 10,2014 & February 02,2015 in due compliance with the stipulated provisions. The
attendance record of members of theAudit Committee is given below

Name ofCommittee Member Position held No. of Meetings during the year 2014-15
Held Attended

Mr. Vikram Shah Chairman 4 4
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Member 4 3
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi Member 4 2
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal Member 4 4

Mr. Vikram Shah, the Chairman of the Committee is a CharteredAccountant. The terms of reference of the committee includes the
matters specified inClause 49(III) of the ListingAgreement read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are wide.Besides having
access to all the required information from the Company, the committee can obtainexternal professional advice whenever required.The
Committee acts as a link between the Statutory and the InternalAuditors and the Board of Directorsof the Company. It is authorized to
select and establish accounting policies, review reports of the Statutory and the InternalAuditorsand meet with them to discuss their
findings, suggestions and other related matters.

b. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to review market practices and to decide onremuneration packages
applicable to the Managing Director & meetings of Executive Directors of the Company. Shri Satyanandji Munjal, member of the
committee has resigned from Board of Directors w.e.f. February02, 2015.

Two Remuneration Committee meetings were held on May 19, 2014 & November 10, 2014 during the F.Y. 2014-15. The attendance
record of the Remuneration Committee is given below

Name of Director Position held No. of Meetings during the year 2014-15
Held Attended

Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi Chairman 2 2
Mr. Satyanand Munjal Member 2 -
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Member 2 1
Mr. Vikram Shah Member 2 2

Nomination & Remuneration Committee assists in discharging the Board’s responsibilities relating to compensation of the Company’s
Executive Directors. The Committee has overall responsibility for approving and evaluating the Executive Director’scompensation
plans.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee reviews the compensation structure for the Executive Directors and recommend to the Board
for revision, if any, in remuneration of Executive Directors from timeto time based oncertain performanceparameters, growth in business
as well as profitability and in line with the practices prevailing in the industry.

The annual compensation of the ExecutiveDirectors is approvedby the Nomination& RemunerationCommittee, within the parameters
approved by the Board of theCompany and confirmed by the shareholders of the Company. The compensation payable to Executive
Directors and themethod of calculation are disclosed separately in the financial statements.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors comprises of salary, commission,perquisites andallowances, contribution toprovident fund
& superannuation fund and gratuity. The Executive Directors are also entitled to leave and leave encashment as per the rules of the
Company. The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fee for Board/Committee meetings and reimbursement of travelling and out of
pocket expenses for attendingsuch meetings.

The Company does not have any stock option scheme. None of the Directors hold any shares in the Company except Mr. Naresh
Kumar Chawla who holds 250 shares & Ms. Anju Munjal holds 311 shares respectively as on March 31, 2015.
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c. Stakeholders’Relationship Committee
TheStakeholdersRelationshipCommitteefunctions under the Chairmanship ofMr.Naresh KumarChawla.FourStakeholdersRelationship
Committee meetings (Formerly known as Shareholder Grievance Committee) were held during the year onMay 19, 2014,August 08,
2014, November10,2014 & February 02,2015. The attendance record ofmembers of theStakeholdersRelationship Committee is given
below:

Name of Director Position held No. of Meetings during the year 2014-15
Held Attended

Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Chairman 4 4
Mr. Vikram Shah Member 4 3
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi Member 4 2
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal Member 4 4

The committee meets as and when required, to inter alia deal with matters relating to transfer of shares and monitor redressal of
complaints from Shareholders relating to transfers, non-receipt of Balance Sheet, non-receipt of dividends declared, etc. with a view to
expediting the process of share transfers, necessary authority has been delegated to approve the transfers of shares.
COMPLAINTS / REQUESTS RECEIVED AND REDRESSED DURING FY 2014-15

Nature of Complaint / Query Received Resolved Pending

1. Inquiry pertaining tonon receipt of shares sent for transfer 3 3 -
2. Non receipt of dividend 67 67 -
3. Dematerialization of shares/ Transmission of shares/ Name deletion 30 30 -
4. Letters received from SEBI / Stock Exchanges / other statutory bodies 4 4 -
5. Loss of shares / Issue of duplicate certificates 15 15 -
6. Request for nominations 1 1 -
7. Exchange New Certificate 3 3 -
8. Miscellaneous queries 49 49 -
9. NonReceipt ofAnnual Report 10 10 -

d. Share Transfer Committee
The ‘Share Transfer Committee’ oversees the functioningof the secretarial department to rendereffective andsatisfactory services to the
investors. The meetings of Share Transfer Committeeare held every fortnight. During theyear, the Committee met 14 times to consider
and approve the requests pertaining to the share transfers, transmission, dematerialization, rematerialisation, issue of duplicate share
certificates etc. Shri Satyanand ji Munjal has resigned from directorship of the company w.e.f. February 02,2015. Details of the Share
Transfer Committee members are given below:

Name of Director Position held in the Committee
Mr. Vikram Shah Chairman
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal Member

The Committee expresses satisfaction with the Company’s performance in dealing with Investor’s grievances and its share transfer
system.
Name & designation of Compliance Officer
Mr. Rakesh Johari: Company Secretary

e. Corporate SocialResponsibility Committee
TheCompaniesAct 2013, mandates incurring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditures, by a certain class of companies.
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MCA, Government of India has listed following guiding principles concerning CSR, which helps one tounderstand the intention of the
Legislature as regard to CSRActivity:
- CSR is the process by which an organization thinksabout and evolves its relationships withstakeholders for the commongood and

demonstrates its commitment in this regard by adoption of appropriatebusiness processes and strategies;
- CSR is a way of conducting business, by which corporate entities visibly contribute to the social good;
- CSR should be used to integrate economic, environmental and social objectives with the company’s operations and growth; and
- CSR projects/ programmes ofa companymay also focus on integrating businessmodels ofa companywith socialand environmental

priorities and processes in order to create share value
Your Company has formed a separate committee of Directors at Board level in its meeting held on May19, 2014 to directly oversee the
CSR related initiatives in accordance with the aforesaid guidelines and rules under the Companies Act 2013. The Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee comprises of Mr. Vikram Shah as the Chairman and Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla, Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal,
Mrs. Anju Munjal and Mr. Anuj Munjal as members of the Committee.

f. Independent Directors Meeting
Schedule IV to theAct, inter alia,prescribes that the independentDirectors of the Companyshall holdat leastone meeting in ayear, without
theattendance of the non-independentdirectors andmembers of the management.During theyear, onemeeting of independent directors
was heldon 28th March,2015. Shri Naresh Kumar Chawla was unanimously elected as the Chairman of the Meeting. The Independent
Directors reviewed the performance of the non-independent directors (including the chairperson) andthe Board as a whole and
assessed the quality, quantity and timeless of flow of information between the company,management and the Board that isnecessary for
theBoard to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
Thedetails ofattendance of the Independent Directors areas follows:

Name ofCommittee Member Position held No. of Meetings during the year 2014-15
Held Attended

Mr. Naresh Kumar Chawla Chairman 1 1

Mr. Vikram Shah Member 1 1
Mr. Mahendra Sanghvi Member 1 1
Mr. Ramkisan Devidayal Member 1 1
Mr. Sudesh Kumar Duggal Member 1 -
Mr. Jal Ratanshaw Patel Member 1 1

5. Disclosure
a. Disclosure of transactions with Related Parties

The Company follows the following policy in regard to disclosure of the relatedparty transactions to theAudit Committee:
a) Astatement in the summary form of transactions with related parties in theordinary course of business is placedperiodically before

theAuditCommittee.
b) There are no material individual transaction with related parties, which are not in the normal course of business and material

individual transaction with related parties or others which are not on arm’s length basis.
During the financial year 2014-15, there was no transaction entered into between the Company and itsPromoter, Directors or the
Management, Subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

b. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements.
Your Company follows the guidelines ofAccounting Standards referred in section 133of CompaniesAct, 2013 read withthe Companies
(Accounts) rules,2014.

c. Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices
The Company has instituted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prevention of insider Trading for itsdesignated employees, in
compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015, as amended from time to
time. The code lays down Guidelines, which advises them onprocedures tobe followed and disclosuresto be made, whiledealing with
shares of the Companyand cautioning them of the consequencesof violations.
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d. Share holder Information
1. Annual General Meeting

Date August 22, 2015
Day Saturday
Time 3.00 PM
Venue Registered Office of the Company:

187,GIDC Industrial Estate, Waghodia – 391760, Dist. Vadodara
2. Dates of Book Closure

August 17, 2015 toAugust 22, 2015 (both days inclusive)
3. Date of Dividend Payment

Onor afterAugust 22, 2015, but within the statutory time limit of 30 days, subject to shareholders’approval.
4. FinancialYear of the Company

Financial reporting for the quarter ending
Jun 30, 2015 On or beforeAug 14, 2015
Sep 30, 2015 On or before Nov 14, 2015
Dec 31, 2015 On or before Feb 14, 2016
Mar 31, 2016 On or before May 30, 2016

5. Registered Office
187, GIDC Industrial Estate,
Waghodia391 760. Dist: Vadodara,
Gujarat. India
Tel: +91 2668 262421-22, Fax: +91 2668 262427
Email: cs@munjalauto.com Website: www.munjalauto.com

6. Corproate Office
324, 3rdFloor, Galleria Tower, DLF Phase IV, Gurgaon- 122 002
Tel : (0124) 4057891/4057892

7. Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchange
Listing Fees:
Listing fees for the year 2015-16 hasbeen paid to the Stock Exchanges,wherein theequity sharesof theCompany are listed (i.e.
BSE & NSE) within stipulated time.
Listing on Stock Exchanges:
Equity shares of the Company are presently listed on following stock exchanges:
Name of Stock Exchange Address
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 25th floor, Sir PJ Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai – 400023.
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) ‘Exchange Plaza’, Bandra-Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400051
8. Stock Code

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 520059
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) MUNJALAU
InternationalSecurities Identification Number (ISIN) for NSDL & CDSL INE 672B01032
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9. Stock Performance

Monthly high and low stock quotationsduring the financial year 2014-15 on the BombayStock Exchange Limited (BSE) and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) are given below:
SHARE PRICE DATA (NSE & BSE)

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) National Stock Exchange (NSE)
Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Volume (Nos.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Volume (Nos.)
April 2014 64.00 50.10 3,05,575 58.70 50.65 7,98,348
May 2014 69.70 51.05 5,47,692 69.80 50.00 11,26,262
June 2014 85.65 65.00 8,77,926 85.60 65.50 23,14,173
July 2014 84.95 71.00 3,32,166 85.00 70.75 10,83,649
August 2014 86.30 71.05 4,17,731 85.90 71.80 10,17,331
September 2014 86.30 82.25 13,24,244 86.25 81.05 40,07,596
October 2014 105.30 102.00 4,69,207 105.8 101.35 13,85,703
November 2014 109.35 105.70 7,22,678 109.55 105.15 24,37,852
December 2014 107.00 101.55 2,82,796 107.00 101.50 8,62,030
January 2015 108.30 106.00 2,11,621 109.00 105.50 6,16,458
February 2015 84.95 81.80 5,70,465 86.90 81.60 17,11,241
March 2015 72.00 68.00 2,62,083 71.50 67.25 8,62,689

COMPANY’S SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT VIS A VIS BSE SENSEX

COMPANY’S SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT VIS A VIS NSE SENSEX
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10. Registrar and Transfer Agent
MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
10,Aram Apartment, 12, Sampatrao Colony, B/h Laxmi Hall,
Alkapuri, Vadodara – 390 007 (Gujarat)
Tel.: +91 265 2339397 / 2350490, Fax: +91 265 2341639
E-mail: mcsltdbaroda@yahoo.com; mcsvadodara@rediffmail.com

11. Share Transfer System
The Share TransferCommittee meets every fortnight to consider the requests for shares sent for physical transfer / transmission
etc.The transfer / transmission of shares are generallyeffected within 15 days of receipt of the requests, if documents are clear in
all respects. Shares under objection are returned generally within a week’s time.
The total number of shares transferred/transmitted in physical form during the year 2014-15 was7,250 shares.

12. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2015
Distribution of Shareholding by number of shares held and Shareholding Pattern inpercentage (pursuant to Clause 35 of the
Listing Agreement) as on March 31,2015 are given below:

No. of Equity Shares held No. of Shareholders % No. of Shares %
Up to 500 9,515 74.32 20,10,050 4.02
501– 1000 1,250 9.76 10,45,922 2.09
1001– 2000 993 7.75 14,56,988 2.91
2001– 3000 449 3.51 11,40,280 2.28
3001– 4000 125 0.98 4,49,738 0.90
4001– 5000 142 1.11 6,84,746 1.37
5001– 10000 187 1.46 13,34,388 2.67
10001– 50000 121 0.94 24,84,242 4.97
50001– 100000 11 0.09 8,82,455 1.77
100001 & above 10 0.08 3,85,11,191 77.02

Total 12,803 100.00 5,00,00,000 100.00
Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2015

Category Holders (No.) No. of Equity Shares heldPercentage of holding
PROMOTER HOLDING
Indian promoters 1 3,74,03,225 74.81
Total of promoter holding 1 3,74,03,225 74.81
NON PROMOTER HOLDING
Institutional investors
- Mutual funds 5 11,215 0.02
- Banks, financial institutions, insurance companies 8 31,335 0.06
- Foreign institutional investors 1 1,09,900 0.22
Others
- Private Corporate bodies 389 15,22,685 3.06
- Indian public 12,226 1,06,87,219 21.37
- NRIs / OCBs 173 2,34,421 0.47
- Co-op.Banks, Co-op. Societies, Trust - - -
- Shares in transit - - -

Total of non promoter holding 12,802 1,25,96,775 25.19
Grand total 12,803 5,00,00,000 100.00



53

MUNJAL AUTO
13. Dematerialization of Shares

Equity shares of the Company, which are under compulsory dematerialisation list, are available for trading under National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).As on March 31, 2015, a total of
4,85,79,755 equity shares of the Company, forming 97.15% of the total paid up equity share capital,stands dematerialised. All
requests for dematerialisation of shares are processedwithin thestipulated time.

14. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrant or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and likely impact on equity
Not applicable

15. Plant Locations
Regd. Office & Unit I Unit II Unit III Unit IV
187, GIDC Industrial Estate, PlotNo.37,Sector 5 Plot No.11, Industrial Park -2 Plot No.32A,
Waghodia –391 760 Phase II, Growth Centre Village :Salempur, Mehdood IndustrialArea,
Dist. Vadodara, Gujarat. India Bawal –123 501 Haridwar – 249 402 Phase II, Dharuhera,
Tel: +91 2668 262421-22 Dist. Rewari, State : Haryana Dist.Haridwar, Uttarakhand Dist. Haryana-122106
Fax: +91 2668 262427 Tel: (01284) 264434-36 Tel:(01334)235530/ 645256-57 Tel:(01274)243010/11/ 12/13/14

16. Address for Correspondence
For queries relating to
Shares and Dividend Financial Statements
Mr. Rakesh Johari Mr. S.K. Sharma
Company Secretary CFO
MunjalAuto Industries Limited, MunjalAuto Industries Limited
187, GIDCIndustrial Estate, 324, 3rdFloor, Galleria Tower, DLF Phase IV,
Waghodia 391760. Dist.Vadodara (Gujarat) Gurgaon- 122 002
Tel: +912668 262421-22 Tel : (0124) 4057891/4057892
Fax: +91 2668 262427 Fax: (0124) 4369506
E-mail: cs@munjalauto.com E-mail: sksharma@munjalauto.com

6. Other Disclosures
a. Details of Annual General Meetings and Special Resolutions passed

Financial year Date Time Venue Special Resolution passed
(ended)
Mar 31, 2012 September 22, 2012 3.00 p.m. 187, GIDC Industrial Estate, Special resolution was passed for

Waghodia 391 760, revision of remuneration payable to
Dist. Vadodara, Gujarat. India Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal,

Managing Director, Mrs. Anju
Munjal and Mr.Anuj Munjal, Whole
Time Directors of the Company.

Mar 31, 2013 August 10,2013 3.30 p.m. - do - Special resolution was passed for
revisionof remunerationpayable to
Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal,
Managing Director, Mrs. Anju
Munjal and Mr.Anuj Munjal, Whole
Time Directors of the Company.
Special resolution was passed for
reappointment of Shri Sudhir
Munjal, MD for further period of 5
yearsw.e.f. 29.10.2013.

Mar 31, 2014 August 08,2014 3.30 p.m. - do - Special resolutions were passed for
(1)Revision of remuneration payable

to Mr. Sudhir Kumar Munjal,
Managing Director, Mrs. Anju
Munjal, and Mr. Anuj Munjal,
Whole time Directors of the
Company.
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(2) Reappointment of Smt. Anju
Munjal, WTD for further period
of 5 years w.e.f. 29.09.2014.

(3) For appointment of All
Independent Directors for tenure
of 5 years.

(4) For borrowing upto Rs.200
Crore under section 180(1)(c)
of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

b. Postal Ballot
During the year under review, following two resolutions were passed as Special Resolution through Postal Ballot process
conducted by Mr. Devesh APathak, Practising Company Secretary:
(1) To authorise Boardof Directors to secure borrowings by lease orotherwise disposing of theundertaking(s) of the Company

(Other than sale) under section 180(1)(a) of Companies Act,2013.
(2) To reappoint Mr.Anuj Munjal as a Whole Time Director of the Company for period of 5 years w.e.f. 01st June,2015 to 31st

May,2020.
Aforesaid both resolutions wereapproved on January 03, 2015 with assent of 99.998% and 99.997% respectively.

c. Details of non compliance etc.
There has neitherbeen any non-compliance of any legal provision of applicable law, nor anypenalty, stricture imposed by the
stock exchangesor SEBI or any other authorities, on any matter related to capital market during thelast three years.

d. Means of Communication
The Company has regularly sent, both by post as well as by fax, E Mail (within 15 minutes of closureof the BoardMeeting) the
AnnualAudited as well as quarterlyun-audited results to both the StockExchanges, BSE & NSE, after they are taken on record
by the Boardof Directors.
Quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are published in prominent daily newspaper such as the Economic Times & Business
Standard.The Company also informs Stock Exchanges in a prompt manner,all pricesensitive informationor such other matters,
which in its opinion are material & relevant for the shareholders, and subsequently issues a press release on the said matters.
The Company’swebsite www.munjalauto.com contains information on the Company and its performance. Presentations to
analysts, as and when made, are immediately put on thewebsite for the benefit of the shareholders and the public at large.

e. Compliance with Mandatory requirements
The Company is fully compliant with the applicable mandatory requirements of the revised Clause 49 ofListingAgreement.

f. Compliance with Non-mandatory requirements
The Company has not adopted the non-mandatory requirements as specified inAnnexure - 3 of the ListingAgreement except
Clause (b) relating to Remuneration Committee.
The Company’s financial statements are free from any qualifications by theAuditors.

g. Whistle Blower Policy
The Company hasadopted “Whistle Blower Policy “ in its Board Meeting held on March 28,2015.Howeverunder the provision
of Fraud Prevention Policy adopted by the Company, a whistler Blower Policy is in place for reporting of fraud or suspected fraud
involving employeesof the Company as well as representatives of vendors, suppliers, contractors, consultants, service providers
or any other party doing the business with Company.All reports of fraud or suspected fraud are investigated with utmost speed.
Your Company is in substantial compliance with theClause 49 and it will always be the Company’s endeavor to attain the best
practices in Corporate Governance.
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MUNJAL AUTO

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATE

We hereby certify to the Board that:

(a) We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015, and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or containstatements that might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing Accounting
Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

(c) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness
of Internal Control Systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such Internal Controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose
to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee:

(i) Significant changes in Internal Control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed inthe notes to the financial statements;
and

(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee
having a significant role in the Company’s Internal Control System over financial reporting.

Date : 29th May, 2015 S K Sharma Sudhir Kumar Munjal
Place : Waghodia CFO Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00084080
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF
THE LISTING AGREEMENT

TO
THE MEMBERS OF MUNJAL AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by MunjalAuto Industries Limited for the year ended March 31, 2015,
as stipulated in Clause 49 of theListingAgreement of the said company with the stock exchanges inIndia.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination was limited to the
review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance asstipulated in the said clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion onthe financial statements of the Company.

Inour opinionand to the best ofour information and according to the explanationsgiven tous, andthe representationsmade by the Directorsand the
management, wecertify that the Companyhas compliedwith the conditions of Corporate Governance asstipulated in the above-mentioned Listing
Agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company northe efficiency or effectiveness with which the
managementhas conducted theaffairs of the Company.

For VAKIL JAIN & HINDOCHA
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.112894W
Sd/-

SURENDRA MODIANI
Place : Vadodara PARTNER
Date : May 29, 2015 Membership No.047966
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